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Frank Edelblut
Commissioner

Christine M. Brennan
Deputy Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street .
Concord, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-3485

August §, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Division of Learner Support to amend an existing sole source
contract with Friends Forever, Inc., Durham, New Hampshire (vendor code #331361) by increasing the
price limitation by $117,845 from $744,000 to $861,845 to provide teen leadership programming for
ddditional at-risk students with no change to the contract end date, effective upon Governor and Council
approval through September 30, 2024. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on
March 22, 2023 (Item #101) and amended December 20, 2023 (Item #143). 100% Federal Funds

Funds to support this request are available in FY25 as follows:

© 06-56-56-562010-24370000 ESSER III = ARP Act 2021

Fiscal | Class/Account Class Title Cutrent Increased Revised
Year Budget (Decreased) Budget
Amount

2023 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $22,000 - $22,000

2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $629,500 - $629,500

2025 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $92,500 $117,845 $210,345
. Total | $744,000 $117,845 $861,845

FY23 FY24 FY25 Total
TOTAL ADJUSTED BUDGET $22,000 $629,500 $210,345 $861,845
EXPLA-NATION

This request is sole source ‘because the original contract was sole source. The Department is requesting
the. amendment to allow Friends Forever, Inc. (FFI) to be able to serve additional students that have been
identified as at risk students in New Har_npshlre

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of2

FF1 is an organization that specializes in this innovative approach to supporting at-risk students with a
team of accomplished professionals in the science, experiential education, civic engagement, and
leadership areas. Students that have participated in the program have had significant success that has been
demonstrated through positive results in the classroom. These positive outcomes have been reported by
school administrators throughout the state.

The purpose of the existing contract is to facilitate addressing learning loss caused by the COVID-19
pandemic and aid in advancing student skills by providing access to educational tools that are interactive,
engaging and integrate multiple content areas. The program is specifically designed to address leaming
recovery in students identified as at-risk and needing immediate support using COVID-19 relief funding.
This amendment will allow for more flexibility in the delivery of the program outside of the current eight
day on-campus experience and thus accommodate additional at-risk students. With remaining funding, we
are able to serve more students with the amendment.

Respectfully submitte
Frank Edelblut
Commissioner of Education

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



AMENDMENT TO

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Division of Leamer Support, hereinafter “the
Agency,” and Friends Forever, Inc., Durham, NH, hereinafter “the Contractor”, and pursuant to an agreement between
" the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on March 22, 2023 (Item #101) modified on August 2, 2023,
and October 2, 2023, amended December 20, 2023 (Item #143) and modified July 3, 2024 hereby- agree to modify
same as follows:

1. Amend the P-37 Section 1.8 Price Limitation by increasing the amount by $117,845 from $744,000 to $861,845.

2. Amend the last line in the table in Exhibit B by removing “up to 20” and replacing with “up to 40" in the Number

of Students column.

3. Amend Exhibit C, Source of Funding table by replacing it with the table below.

06-56-56-562010-24370000 ESSER III - ARP Act 2021

Fiscal | Class/Account Class Title Current Increased Revised
Year : Budget (Decreased) Budget
‘ : Amount .

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 322,000 - $22,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $629,500 - $629,500
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $92,500 $117,845 $210,345

) ’ Total | $744,000 $117,845 $861,845

FY23 FY24 FY25 Total

TOTAL ADJUSTED BUDGET $22,000 $629,500 $210,345 $861,845

. 4. - All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect as originally set forth; and

5. This amendment shall commence upon Governor and Council approval and shall terminate on September 30,

2024,

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties

and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties, heréto have set their hands-as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education

(Agency)

Division of __Commissioner’s Office

Ouz %/é/é/ 8/14/2024
By:

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education Date
Friends Forever Inc.
Name of Corporation (Contractor)
By: ’ f7\t‘ 08/12/2024
Stephen Ma&ineau, COE/Executive Director Date



Approved as to form, substance, and execution by the Attomey General this_14 day of August 2024

b Jf—

Elizabéth, Brown Division of Attorney General Office

Approved by the Governor and Council this _ day of , 20

By:




One Morgan Way
Murkam, NH 03824

Office +1.603.397.5301 _

~FFIE

To: NH Department 6f Education

I, Robert Raiche. Jr., hereby certify that I am a duly appointed representative of

Friends Forever. Inc. Ihereby ccrtii“y that Stephen.Martineau, CEQ is duly authorized to

execute contracts on behalf of Friends Forever, Inc. and may bind the organization thereby.

I hereby certify that said authority has not been amended or repealed and remains in full
force and effect as pf the date of the contract to WMOh this certificate is attached. This aufhority
remains valid for thirty (30) days. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hmnpshiré will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy
the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: ‘g/ /77/ 24 Amwﬁ

Robett Raiche, Jr. J

Board Treasurer



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FRIENDS FOREVER, INC. is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 27, 1995, I further
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Businéss ID: 239775
Certificate Number: 0006340664

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1st day of November A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Business Information

Business Details

Business Name: FRIENDS FOREVER, INC, ' Business ID: 239775
. " s
Business Type: Domestic Nonprofit Corporation | { Business Status: Good Standing )
' Name in State of

Business Creation Date: 11/27/1995 Not Available

Incorporation:
Principal Office Address: 1 Morgan Way, Durham, NH, _ Mailing Address: 1 Morgan Way, Durham, NH,
03824, USA 03824, USA
Citizenship / State of '

. Domestic/New Hampshire
Incorporation:

Last Nonprofit

Report Year:
Next Report Year: 2025

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE ' Phone #: NONE *
: iscal Year End
Notification Email; NONE Fisca  are, NONE

Principal Purpose

S.No  NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

OTHER / EUMINATE RELIGIOUS PREJUDICES &
FOSTER BETTER RELATIONS AMONG PEQPLE

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

Principals Information

Name/Title Business Addrass

Robert Raiche / Treasurer PO Box 2028, Danvers, MA, 01923, USA

Stephen Martineau / Director PO Box 389, Milton Mills, NH, 03852, USA

Jaméson French / President 45 Driftwood Lane, Portsmouth, NH, 03801, USA
. Tim Allison / Secretary | PG Box 1396, Portsmouth, NH, 03802, USA

Jo Lamprey / Director 16 Atlantic Ave, North Hampton, NH, 03862, USA

; ¥ T ' -l
< Previous .. 1 ii w j Next > | Page 10f 2, records 1to 5 of 6 ‘} Lf?}ﬁ«"‘ge i




. | FRIEFOR-01 CHAUGHTON
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE e

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUGER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. ,

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on”
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ggHTEACT Nichole Coombs
i 2 . ONE FAX
Bernier Insurance Inc _ o, e % o
Rochester, NH.03867 : _ Eifdkss. ncoombs@bernierins.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : Union Mutual of Vermont . 25860
INSURED nsurer B : Philadelphia Insurance Company
Friends Forever Inc, insurer ¢ : Eastern Alliance Insurance Group
One Morgan Way ' INSURER D :
Durham, NH 03824 ’
INSURERE :
- INSURERF : :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ‘ REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD -
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ISR TYPE OF INSURANCE oDl [EuBR POLICY NUMBEER | (AT ,M“%ﬂ',%*m“” - LIMITS
A | X'| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE S 2,000,000
CLAIMS-MADE ‘OCCUR . 6/2i2024 | 6/2/2025 | DAMAGE TORENTED ! 100,000
. | PREMISES {Ea accurrencs) | $
— MED EXP {Any one person) | 8 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INIURY | § 2,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ' . GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 4,000,000
X | Poucy Sy Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | § 4,000,000
OTHER: 5
B | automcsiLe uaeiLiTy . A I 1,000,000
ANY AUTO : 41712024 | 41M7I2025 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
] HEDULED .
oS ONLY Roroe’ BODILY INJURY {Per accident) | $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
i R!IJRT?% ONLY n ES‘P@%V&%E?' Mm? $
3
B { X |umereLtauas | X | occur EACH GCCURRENCE 3 1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MAGE 41712024 | 41712025 |, ooccate 3 1,000,000
peo | X | rerenmons 10,000 P
PER OTH
WORKERS COMPENSATION . )
¢ ANG EMPLOYERS LIABILITY YIN 4/30/202 130/ X | SIAIUTE \ = 500,000
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE . 130/2024 | 413072025 | &\ gacH acciDENT $ :
PFFICER.’MEMBER EXCLUDED? NiA 500.000
Mandatary in NH E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ '
If yes, describe under 500,000
DESCRIPTIGN OF OPERATIONS below . E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § :

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, may be attached If more space is reguived)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

. ] THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
g;"'_?‘;;’ét"f Education ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
a .

Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

. | . B } -
ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Board of Directors Friends Forever 2024

 Mission Statement: FFI empowers youth to become the best versions of themselves so they

can help their community become the best version of itself.

Name Position Profession Industry Committee Location
Jameson French Chair CEO Northland Forest Executive New Hampshire
Finance/Investment/
Nominating
Tim Allison Vice Chair Executive Director. Great Bay Executive ‘New Hampshire
Community College Finance{Nominating
Robert RaicheJr. Treasurer Realtor Real Estate Executive - New Hampshire
Finance/Investment/
Nominating
Darcy Peyser Secretary  Attorney Small Executive Finance New Hampshire
Eric Buesing | Director . Consultant McKinsey ' North Carolina
Steve Falci Director Analyst Impax Funds Investment New Hampshire
Christirie Dwyer Director CEOQ RMC New Hampshire
Robert Gibson  Director  Vice President Toast Investment New Hampshire
Jeff Fahey Director Actor/Advocate  Hollywood/Human Austin, tX '
Kate Friedrich Director Vice President Thomson-Reuters Washington DC
lessica Mayé Director Oncology Nurse  Dundee Hospital Scotland



FRIENDS FOREVER, INC

~ (operating as Friends Forever International) -
(a nonprofit corporation)

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

{Expressed in United States Dollars)
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S AUDIT REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Friends Forever International
Durham, NH

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Friends Forever International (the “Company,”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related statement of activities, statement of cash flows, and statement of functional
- expenditures for the year ending December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responéible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Thosé standards reqguire that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statéments are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in order te design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to abave present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Friends Forever
International as of December 31, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Adam J. Baker
Certified Public Accountant
Underwood, Minnesota

April 26, 2023




FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2022
Assets 2022 2021
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 161,663 $ 198,748
Noncurrent Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 466,471 481,331
~ Loans to Significant Events, Inc. 32,626 -
Shares in Significant Events, Inc. 335,000 335,000
Total Noncurrent Assets 834,097 816,331
Fixed Assets :
Land 1,700,549 1 ,_70_0;549
Buildings 1,311,755. 1,311,755
Equipment 15,995 15,995
Other : 5,500 5,500
. Less: Accumulated Depreciation (204,401) (169,347)
Total Fixed Assets- 2,829,398 2,864,452
Total Assets $3,825,158 $3,879,531
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 24,994 $ 20,697
" Long-term Liabilities
Notes Payable 099,738 720,205
Total Long-Term Liabilities 699,738 720,205
Total Liabilities 724,732 740,902
Net Assets
Without Donor Restriction :
Undesignated 3,079,893 3,095,627
Total Without Donor Restriction 3,079,893 3,095,627
With Donor Restriction
Temporarily Restricted 20,533 :43,002
Total With Donor Restriction 20,533 43,002
Total Net Assets $3,825,158 $3,879,531




FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

. Qperating Revenue

- Contributions - Cash
Contributions - In Kind
Program Revenue
Fundraising Events

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenditures

Program Services:
Program Activities

Total Program Services

Supporting Services
Fundraising
Management and General

Total Supporting Services

Released Donor Restricted Funds (Note 4)

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Governmental Grants
Unrealized Gain (Loss)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs)

Change In Net Assets
Net Assets - January 1, 2022
Net Assets - December 31, 2022

| 2022 [ [ 2621 |
Without With
, Donor Donor
Restriction’ Restriction Total Total
$ 536,237 $ - $ 536,237 $ 569,313
- - - 370,000
82,643 - 82,643 102,593
99,009 - 99.009 122,398
717,889 - 717,889 1.164.304
380,306 - 380,306 320,401
380,306 - 380,306 320,401
121,023 - 121,023 114,980
137,065 - 137,065 161,740
258,088 - 258,088 276,720
638,394 - 638394 597121
. - - - 85,007
(96,210) - (96,210} 18,785
(96,210) - (96.210) 86,331
{16,715} - (16,715} 654,558
3,122,212 - 3,122212 2,467,654
$ 3.105497 $ - $3,105.497 $3,122,212 -




FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Excess Revenues over Expenditﬁres
Accounts Payable
Payroll Liabilities
Loan to Significant Events
Depreciation Expense

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Debt Issuance Cost
Restricted Funds - Fiscal Agency
Principal Payment of Note Payable

. Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Investment Securities
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net cash increase for period
Cash in banks at beginning of period
Cash in banks at end of period

2022

$  (16,715)
1,750

2,547
(24,470)

35,054

(1,834)

470
(21,488)

(20,937)

(41,955)

6,704

6,704

(37,085)
198,748

$ 161,663



Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoRr YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

1. SUMMARY

Friends Forever International, Inc. (Organizationi is a non-profit 501(c)3 organization. Was incorporated cn March 23,
1997 under the New Hampshire Monprofit Corporation Act and is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)3 of
the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization’s mission is to help build a better world by utilizing our most underutilized
~ asset: youth. They work with communities around the globe to build the leadershlp abilities of their youth from diverse
backgrounds to tackle local and global issues.

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501{c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). For
the year ending December 31, 2022, the Organization did not have income unrelated to its exempt purposes.and was
not subject to the Unrelated Business Income Tax. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal
Revenue Service to be a publicly supported organization, and not classified as a private foundation under the meaning
of Section 509(a) of the IRC.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Organization conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America ("US GAAP") for Not-For-Profits. The significant accounting and reporting pelicies
used by the organization are described subsequently to enhance the usefulnéss and understandability of the
financial statements ’

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. On an ongoing basis, the Organization’s management evaluates the
estimates and assumptions based upon historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. The
Organization’s management believes that the estimates and assumptions are reasonable in the circumstances; however,
the actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Assets

The financial statements report net assets and changes in net assets in two classes that are based upon the existence or
absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets are resources available to support operations. The only limits on the use of unrestricted
net as_sets are the brood limits resulting from the nature of the organization, the environment in which it
operates, the purposes specified in it’s corporate documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any
limits resulting from contractuol agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the course 6f

its operations.




Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOEJNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Temporarily restricted net assets are resources that are restricted by a donor-for use for a particular purpose or

in a particular future period. The organization’s unspent contributions are classified in this class if the donor

limited their use, as are the unspent appreciation of its donor-réstricted endowment funds,

 When a donor’s restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner specified by the donor or by
the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial statements by reclassifying the

net assets from temporarily restricted to unrestricted net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company’s cash are deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy. ’

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross
customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and histerical
" experience of losses incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all
contractual payments due will not be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,
2022, the Organization determined that no reserve was necessary.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Property Fixed Assets are reported in the statement of financial position at cost, if purchased, and at fair vatue at the '
date of donation, if donated. Equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $1,000 or more and a useful life when acquired
of more than 1 year. Repairs and maintenance that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the
assets:

Buildings 27 years
Equipment 5-10 years
Computer Software 5 years
Vehicles 7-10 years

Fixed Assets are reviewed for impairment when a significant change in the asset’s use or another indicator of possible
impairment s present. - No impairment losses were recognized in the financial statements in the current period.




Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized when received. All contributions are reported
as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in temporarily restricted net assets. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an
implied restriction to be used in the year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support activities of the current fiscal year.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, untit all
conditions on which they depend are-substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

Material contributions in a form other than cash or investments are recorded as follows. If the organization receives
a contribution of land, buildings, or equipment, the contributed asset is recognized as an asset at its estimated fair
value at the date of gift, provided that thevalue of the asset and its estimated useful life meets the organization’s
capitalization policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated fair
value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. [f the use of the-space is promised unconditionally for a
period greater than one year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at
the date of gift and as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

Donated Services

The Organization receives-donated services from volunteers that are used for the rebuild program. The volunteers have
donated significant amounts of time and services in the program. However, only a portion of the services meet the
criteria for_recognition in financial statements. GAAP allows recognition of contributed services only if (a} the services
create or enhance non-financial assets or {b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by contribution,
require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Expense hecognitfon and Allocation

The cost of providing the organization’s programs and other activities is summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of activities and statement of functional expenses. Expenses that can be identified with a specific -
program or support service are charged directly to that program or support service. Costs common to multiple
functions have been allocated among the various functions benefitted.

General and administrative expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiable with any specific program,
but which provide for the overall support and direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in contributions received in future years,
The Organization generally does not conduct its fundraising activities in conjunction with its other activities. In the
few cases in'which it does, such as when the annual report or donor acknowledgements contain requests for
contributions, joint costs have been allocated between fundraising and management and general expenses in
accordance with standards for accounting for costs of activities that include fundraising. Additionally, advertising
costs are expensed as incurred.




Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

. The Organization reports its fair value measures using a three-level hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to
- measure fair value. This hierarchy, established by GAAP, requires that entities maximize the use of observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs used to measure -
fair value are as follows:

Level 1—Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities. .

Level 2—Qbservable Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include

*  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

e Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active;

e Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset or liability (for example, interest rates and yield curves); and
¢ Inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or by other means.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Organization’s assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

When available, the organization measures fair value using level 1inputs becatse they generally provide the
most reliable evidence of fair value. However, level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and
liabilities that the'organization is requiréd to measure at fair value (for example, unconditicnal promises to give
and in=kind contributions.) '

Subsequent Events

The Organization cotisiders events or transactions that occur after the balance sheets date, but prior to the issuance
of the financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that
require additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 10, 2022 which is the date the
financial statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

in May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Custorners. The Company adopted ASU No.
2014-09 on January 1, 2018. There were no adjustments necessary to opening retained earnings/{accumulated deficit).

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes. ASU No. 2015-17
requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position.
This guidance i5 effective for the period beginning January 1, 2018. The Company early adopted the provisions of ASU
No. 2015-17 during the 2018 year.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard introduces a new lessee
model that brings substantially all leases onto the balance sheets. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of adoption of ASU No. 2016-
02 on its financial statements, but generally would expect that the adoption of this new standard will result in a material
increase in the long-term assets and liabilities of the Company as result of our lease agreements.

+
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Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i
For YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 26, 2023, wh_ich is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. Events occurring after that date have not been evaluated to determine whether a change in
the financial statements would be required.

-10 -



FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Program Services - Support Serviees

Leadership
Development Management and Total Supporting
Programs Fundraising General Service Total

. Advertising 3 120 - - 120
Bank Fees . - 1,829 1,829 1,829
Depreciation Expense 19,086 15,968 15,968 35,054
Event Expenses - . 61,245 61,245
Fundraising Expenses - - 6,721 6,721
Information Technology - 1,325 10,160 10,160
Insurance 18,877 1,041 [,041 19918
Interest Expense 1,500 21,442 21,442 22,942
Human Resources - 1,781 1,781 1,781
Miscellaneous Expenses - 544 544 544
Office Expenses - 7,997 7,997 7,997
Payroll 160,494 61,728 36,419 246,913
Payroll Taxes 10,895 4,191 5,867 16,762
Printing, Postage, and Shipping 8,228 764 18,262 26,490
Professional Fees ' 4,315 14,645 15,002 19,317
Program Fees 82,331 - - 82,331
Taxes and Licenses 7,828 - - 7,828
Travel and Training, 42,009 801 301 42,810
Utilities 24,623 3,009 3,009 27,632
Total Expenses $ 380,306 137,065 258,088 638,394 -




" Percentage of Personnel:

One Morgan Way
Durham, NH 03824

(ffice: +1.603.397.5301

FF|

Name Title Percentage/Amount of Salary
Paid by Contract

Alex DesRuisseaux Program Manager 0% ‘

Matthew Arsenault Special Projects Coordinator | 0%

Amelia Burke Special Projects Manager 0%

Stephen Martineau CEO 0%

Monica Rogers Office Coordinator $32,970

Natalie Gauthier

Volunteer Coordinator

§21,040




Alexandra DesRui U
Program &Community Engagement Coordinator
at Friends Forever International

( | University of Maine at Presque Isle

) . . . B.S. Elementary Education
: @ alex@ff.infernational . Secondary Education Certification
Psychology Minor

Social Studies Concentration

Moy 2019

Program and Community Directs, designs, lmplemenfs cmd evc:luo’res progrommlng with
Engagement Coordinator youth from diverse global backgrounds.
Friends Forever International v Development of creative and innovative curriculum
Durham, NH| 12/21:Current ¥ Oversees training of international alumni leaders
v’ Manages program schedules/ budgets including colloboro’rlon
with partners

v’ Supports and ploys leading role in major fundraising and specml
events
Social Studies Teacher and Teaching a variety of Social Studies and Elective courses to High
ELO Coordinator School students in a competency based, alternative school
Rochester Learning Academy  setting. Beginning in the fall of 2021, as the ELO Coordinator, |
Rochester, NH| 08/19- 06/22 have also been responsible for overseeing and facilitating credit
- bearing experiences outside of the classroom setting.-
v Building engaging, interdisciplinary curriculum
v Giving individualized instruction to ensure progress on individual
504 and IEP goadls

} v Educating students with diverse behavioral/ academic needs
Teen Leaders Club Director  Facilitating meetings, design leadership development and
YMCA of Strafford County ~ community service opportunities. '
Rochester, NH | 01/21- 04/22 v Facilitating and leading group meetings
: v Organizing club finances, paperwork, and records

Lead Camp Counselor Facilitation and curriculum development for a summer camp
- The Gundalow Company  focused on maritime heritage and conservation.
Portsmouth, NH | 06/21-08/21 v Designing engaging science-based summer curriculum:
v Facilitating activities and safety aboard an active vessel

Summer Camp Science  Engaging a group of 8-15 middle school aged camp
Instructor  participanis in remote instruction and activities.
Edventure More, Camp EDMO v Teaching remote science-based curriculum
San Francisco, CA|06/20-08/20 v Facilitating social emotional learning-based activities

Counselor in Training (CIT)  Overseeing the daily schedule and program creation for the
Program Coordinator  Counselor in Training Program.

YMCA Camp Sargenf v Organized activities and staff assignments
Merrimack, NH|06/18-08/19 v Guided teens in establishing a summer long fundraising effort



Student Teacher and
Substitute Teacher

- Ross A. Lurgio Middle School
Bedford, NH|01/19-05/1¢%

Research Assistant

University of Maine at Presque *

Isle Coltege of Arfs and
- Sciences
Presque Isle, ME|05/18-05/19

University of Maine at Presqué

Isle Student Representative

University of Maine System
Board of Trustees
Bangor, ME| 05/16-05/18

Cabin Counselor
Camp Walt Whitman

Piermont, NH | 06/17-08/17

Resident Assistant

University of Maine at
Presque Isle

Presque Isle, ME| 01/16-12/17

Independent and supervised teaching in 7th-grade Social Studies.
Substituting in various content areas within 7/8h grades.

v Submitting weekly reflections, lessons plans, and fime logs

v Developing and teaching classroom lessons and unit plan

~Developing science curriculum aligning with NGSS standards

based on the research of Dr. Jason Johnston.
v’ Staying familiar with University research on the relationship
between climate change and bird migration patterns

v Creating a cohesive unit plan for 6-8% grode students to be

published with research

" Represented the students of my campus while initiating efforts

relative fo the student body needs and advocating for state
investment in higher education within a 2-year elected term.

v Staying informed on the needs, and concems of students

v Acling as a liaison between the Board and the Student Govt

Living with and co-leading a cabin of eleven-year-old campers
through daily activities, day hikes, and overnight trips.

v, Building a cabin community and culture within my bunk

v Overseeing daily needs of assigned campers

Helping orient new students and design programs based on
engaging new students.

v Facilitated activities to get students involved in campus life

v Inform residents of and enforce campus policies on duty hours

v Maine NEW Leadership Program Graduate
Margaret Chase Smith Policy Center, May 2019

v" Quistanding Secondary Education Major of

the Year

U. Of Maine-- Presque Isle, May 2019
v" Heart and Soul $tudent Award
Maine Campus Compact, April 2017
v" Resident Assistant of the Year
U. Of Maine- Presque Isle, May 2016

v Member of the Transition Community of
Practice and ELO Coordinator Network
Seacoast ELO Network 09/21-Current

v Presiderit of The Student Government
Association
U. Of Maine— Presque Iste 08/18-12/18 -

v Founding Member of the Inclusion and
Civility Task Force
U. Of Maine- Presque.Isle 11/16-12/18

v’ Vice President of the Student Education
Association of Maine
(State Chapter VP and Local Chapter VP)

U. Of Maine— Presque Isle 09/146-12/18



Matthew Arsenault

Experience

MENTAL HEALTH REHABILITATION TECHNICJAN / CliISIS‘ SERVICES PROVIDER (MHRT/CSP);
SWEETSER - MAINE METTAL HEALTH PROVIDER

'SEPTEMBER 2021 - CURRENT
Child & Family Aftercare Program: Represents youth who are receiving or has received

services and supports related to the diagnosis of a mental illness, serious emotional
disturbance, and/or developmental delay. Orchestrates at-home visits to provide
individual care reflective of both child and family’s unique areas of concern. Ensures child
and family’s fluid transition into independent, sustainable healthy practices within the
home and/or community post initial crisis services and treatment(s).

CO-FOUNDER & ORGANIZER OF YORK MAINE FOR BLACK LIVES
JUNE 2020 - AUGUST 2021

Organized public marches and civil disobedience events calling attention to social
inequities found both locally and nationally. Facilitated and spoke on virtual informational
panels discussing the intersectionality of identity related oppressions. Collaborated with
other advocacy groups to cohost events, share resources, and promote accessibility across
audiences. Established updated foundation of knowledge to provide to local schoo!
systemns, library networks, and other community spaces for further reference.

COMMUNITY ADVISOR; ! ESLEY UNIVERSITY OFFICE OF RESIDENCE LIFE
AUGUST 2017 - MAY 2018

Lived within campus residence halls overseeing 45 students as a resource for campus
materials and policies. Coordinated 2 to 4 monthly events to facilitate residential unity
while fecarding financial expenses and maintaining a block budget. Mentored residents
through both academic and personal conflicts. Served roughly 40 hours per month on
duty as a student first responder and kept detailed documentation for reported incidents.

CAMP bIRECT OR & COUNSELOR; YORK PARKS AND RECREATION
SUMMER OF 2013 - 2017

Director of Summer Track program, ages 8-15; developed weekly practice and training
regiments, oversaw coaching staff development, organized and facilitated competitions
with other team directors. Counselor of Junior Adventure Camp, oversaw 3-5 year old age
group; executed adapted daily activities and schedules, chaperoned off site field trips,
contributed to both opening and closing procedures.



Matthew Arsenault

"MW Education

University Of Southern Maine

. Graduate Class of 2022: Cértificate Graduate Study of Public and Nonprofit Management.

Undergraduate Class of 2021: Bachelors's Degree in Leadership and Organizational
Studies, Community Leadership and Civic Engagement Concentration. Graduated with
Summa Cum Laude Honors,

Skills & Qualifications

Certified in: Mental Health Rehabilitation Technician / Crisis Services Personal {(MHRT CSP),
Child and Adolescent Level of Care/Service Intensity Utilization System (CALOCUS-CASII),
Counseling to Access to Lethal M_eans {CALM), and various crisis intervention protocols.

Able to work with diverse groups of people. Capable of facilitating both small and large
group activities. Adaptable to compliment various work environments. Trained in areas
regarding conflict resclution and effective communication. Detail orientated. Punctual and
reliable. Desire to learn and expand capabilities through new experiences. Educated and
continuously expanding further knowledge on diversity, equity, and inclusion. Competent
in Microsoft Office.

References

Jamie Baburek (she/her/hers)

Clinical Supervisor; Sweetser Crisis Services

Joyce Gibson (she/her/hers)

Former Professor; University of Southern Maine

Sandra Jodelka (she/her/hers)

Former Residence Life Area Coordinator; Lesley University



Amelia Burke

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Experienced coordinator in nonprofit settings with students and scholars from different countries and
cultures. Dedicated to creating a diverse and inclusive environment for individuals from all overthe world.
Experienced in program management, grant writing, fundraising, and process improvement. A quick
learner skilled in working collaboratively and liaising with peers.

= Proficient in French

» Proficient in Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, PowerPoint)

» Proficient in PeopleSoft and Little Green Light systems

= Proficient in social media platforms

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Friends Forever International - Durham, NH

Special Projects Manager January 2021 - Present
Special Projects Coordinator ' January 2020 - January 2021
AmeriCorps VISTA January 2019 - January 2020

»  Assist in executing leadership programs for all ages but in particular youth ages 15-18 from
Northern Ireland, Israel, Cyprus, and the U.S.

»  Facilitate workshops that focus on team building, communication, goal setting, public speaking,
creativity, and service-learning

= Travel to partner locations, such as Northern Ireland, Israel, and New Orleans, to provide in-person
leadership programming |

» Manage daily operations of all FFI campuses in New Hampshire, Northern Ireland, and Belize

»  Help recruit and manage the organization’s volunteers, including alumni of our programs, interns,
community members/organizations, and corporate volunteers

»  Write and submit grants to fund an array of projects and programming initiatives

= Coordinator special events for the organization '

= Complete other various projects as assigned by Executive Director

PS It Matters, Bags 4 My Cause - Portsmouth, NH :
Program Manager July 2018 - January 2019
» Serve as program director for reusable bag donation program for clients
= Carry out daily execution, maintenance, and improvement of bag donation program -
=  Work with over 1,000 nonprofits to ensure understanding of bag program, smooth and efficient
execution of the program, and obtainment of full benefits of program participation
= -Maintain database records, such as nonprofit organizational information

Massachusetts General Hospital, Department of Neurology - Boston, MA

Visa and Operations Coordinator July 2016 - fune 2018
=  Serve as the primary contact for all visa and green card-related questions and {ssues
= Advise over 100-international scholars and students on immigration regulations
= Prepare visa applications to send to international office for processing



* Support new international scholars and students with the transition to living and workingin the
Boston area by providing guidance and relevant information

= Manage projects for Chief, Vice Chairs of Research, and Administrative Directors

* Create and implement department-wide SOPs, trainings, and other materials

National Institutes of Health, Division of International Services, HHS - Bethesda, MD .
Visa Coordinator - ' December 2014 - June 2016
Program Support September 2014 - December.2014

*  Assisted in the processing of visa cases for visiting foreign scientists

* Prepared immigration petitions to send to USCIS

= Completed data entry into their database

. EDUCATION

SIT Graduate Institute, Brattleboro, VT
M.A. International Education - May 2018
Salve Regina University, Newport, RI
B.A. French, Minor in Global Studies, Magna Cum Laude - May 2014
Université Catholique de Lyon, Lyot, France
Diploma Level B2+ - Spring 2013
Completed intensive French language immersion classes in grammar and oral communication
through an exchange program .

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE _
Friends Forever Interriatiohal, Durham, NH ~ AmeriCorps VISTA January 2019 - January 2020
= Completed one year of capacity building public service
- World Learning, Washington D.C. - Iraqi Young Leaders Exchange Program Decembers 2016-2018

* Reviewed applications submitted by prospective participants for the Department of State-
sponsored program

PROFESSIONAL AWARDS -

Spot Award - Massachusetts General Hospital ' : June 2018
Partners in Excellence Award - Partners Healthcare April 2018
Spot Award - Massachusetts General Hospital May 2017
Spot Award - Massachusetts General Hospital . ) February 2017

Distinguished Achievement Award - Kelly Services April 2016



steve@ff.international

Stephen Martineau
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Friends Forever International — Durham, NH .
CEO/Executive Director November 2005-Present
Oversee excecution leadership programs for all ages that empower individuals to have a positive impact on their
communities

®  Oversee all programming including curriculum development, implementation, preparation, facilitation,
etc. - ‘

Oversee all organizational finances

Manage all staff members

Fundraise for organization via major donors, grants, corporations, etc.

Maintain all campuses and manage daily operations

MYTOWN (Multicultural Youth Tour of What's Now) — Boston, MA
Marketing Director ‘ April 2002 - October 2005

Boston Children's Museum — Boston, MA ‘ _
Events & Functions Coordinator = ) February 2001-March 2002

- Stixx on the Waterfront — U.S. Virgin Islands
Bartender _ August 1999 - October 2000

Habitat for Humanity — South Carolina
Construction Coordinator for Volunteers January 1998 — August 1998

"EDUCATION

College of the Holy Cross, Worcester, MA
B.A. History — 1997

BOARD EXPERIENCE -

Friends Forever Europe — Annalong, Northemn Ireland
General Secretary of Board September 2010-Present

World Affairs Council of New Hampshire — Manchester, NH ) '
Board Member , : May 2019-November 2021



Monica Rogers

A Skills
| Copywriting | Copyediting & Proofreading | Style Guides including Chicago Manual, APA & AP |
| Project Management | Author & Client Relations | Attention to Detail |
_ . | Microsoft Office Suite | Adobe Acrobat & InDesign |-
| Content Management Systems such as JIRA, SAP, Workfront & Microsoft Teams |

Experience

John Wiley & Sons, Hoboken, NJ  February 2016 — December 2022
Managing Editor _ July 2022 — December 2022

e Manage the scheduling and rescurce allocation for the production of over 130 professional and
educational books and products. '

e Ensure all projects stay within pre-agreed contracted budget, publication deadline, and quality
standards. '

e Liaise between all internal and external stakeholders on titles to ensure all parties are kept
apprised and updated on project information throughout the various stages of the publishing
process.

® Act as the guide and first point of contact for authors and other outside vendors throughout the
writing and production phases of the publishing process.

Problem-solve any unforeseen issues that may arise during the publication process.
Train new MEs, create and update process and workflow documentation, and initiate and
collaborate on special projects.

Associate Managing Editor, John Wiley & Sons February 2020 - June 2022
Assistant Editor, John Wiley & Sons July 2019 - January 2020

Program Assistant, John Wiley & Sons January 2019 — June 2019

Senior Editorial Assistant, John Wiley & Sons September 2017 — December 2018
Editorial Assistant, John Wiley & Sons February 2016 — August 2017

Education and Certifications
Bachelor Of Arts (BA), English with a Concentration in Publishing
Hofstra University
Copyediting and Proofreading Books Certificate
School of Professional Studies, New York University
Web Design and Development Certificate
Cornell University Online



Natalie Gauthier

Professional Summary

A motivated individual with 8+ years of experience professionally engaging with and 3+ years
experience working for an international non-profit organization focusing on world peace and
youth empowerment. Thus, developed an exceptional ability to communicate, work with a
team, be flexible, and an understanding of various sofiwares. A background in customer
service for 8+ years instilled patience, a positive attitude, and a keen attention to detail.

Career nghhghts :

e Designing, coordmatlng, and executing a 12+ session personai development
program for at risk wormen in a transitional living facility.

e Directly facnlltatmg 6+ youth programs focusing on ampathetic Ieadershlp for 14-18
year olds coming from diverse backgrounds around the world. Programs included
intérnational travel and two cross-country roadtrips within the U.S. with a
requirement of understanding both international and domestic politics.

e Executing a large scale fundraising event: a golf tournameant with 100 golfers, a silent
auction, raffles, and 15+ sponsors. ‘

e Consoclidating and integrating two softwares of over 10,000 constituents to enhance
the functioning and dutreach of an international organization.

Professional Experience

Friends Forever Internatienal Inc; Durham, NH - Volunteer Coordinator
September 2019 - November 2019 - intern
September 2021 - Present - Volunteer Coordinator

Education

University of New Hampshire - B.A. Political Science & M.A. Political Science
August 2020 - May 2024

- PhiBeta Kappa Honor Souety Member
- Cum Laude Graduate
- Dean's Scholar

Skills
¢ Writing concise but comprehensive pieces ranging from current events to

international relations theory.

Interpersonal {community members ard the needs of copnection etc.)

¢ Marketing: social media posts, community ocutreach/engagement,
Softwares Used: Word, Excel, Sheets, Google Drive, Adobe, Lightroom, Little Green
Light, Mailchimp, Canva

e Public Speaking: spoken at 1 event with over 700 people, 1 with over 150, and 2 with
over 100, and countless others,



Christine M. Brennan

Frank Edeiblut
Deputy Commissioner

Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street
Concord, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-3495

June 24, 2024

) Modification to: Friends Forever, Inc., Contract .
Approved by Governor and Couneil on March 22, 2023, Item #101 modified on August 2, 2023,
and October 2, 2023, Amendment Approved by Governor and Council on December 20, 2023,
Item #143,

Authotize New Hampshire Department of Education, Commissioner’s Office, to modify the contract with
Friends Forever, Inc. (FFI), Durham, New Hampshire (VC# 331361), in the amount not to exceed $744,000
to provu:le teen leadership programming for at-risk students to facilitate learning recovery in the content areas
of science, social studies, communication, writing, leadership and experiential education. As of July 1, 2024,
Friends Forever, Inc., will modify their budget by transferring the amount of $57,500 from the FY 2025

budget to the FY2024 budget.

Modification to include:

Federal Funds in the FY 2024 Budget will increase by $57, SOO
Federal Funds in the FY 2025 Budget will decrease by $57, 500
The not to exceed amount of $744,000 will remain unchanged.

e NOTE: all other contractual obligations remain in place as established in the original contract.

100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in FY24 and FY25 in the account titled ESSER III - ARP Act
2021, with the authority to adjust encumbrances between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without

further Governor approval, if needed and justified.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Page 2 of 2

Budget Modification Table:

06-56-56-562010-24370000 ESSER IIT - ARP Act 2021

Fiscal | Class/Account Class Title Current Increased Revised

Year ) Budget (Decreased) Budget
Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Srvs $22,000 50 $22,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Srvs $572,000 $57,500 $629,500
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Srvs $150,000 (57,500) $92,500
Total $744,000 $0 $744.000

FY23 FY24 FY25 Total
TOTAL ADJUSTED BUDGET $22,000 $629,500 $92,500 $744,000

Limitation of Price: .

Upon mutwval agreement between the Department of Education and the contractor, line items in this budget
may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the total budget exceed the price limitation of $744,000.
FFI will monitor program participation and reject participation that would exceed $744,000.

Date: 8126124

Q//é %6’- Date: 7/3/2024 2"_4

Frank Edelblut Stephen Martineau
Commissioner CEQO/Executive Director

Department of Education Friends Forever, Inc.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OFPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



icate of Aniborit

I, Robert Raichs; hereby certify that Tam » duly appointed representative of Fricnds Forpver Ine.

1kemby certify that Stephen Mnmmu. CEQ, # authrized 1o oxeents soniriets on bolalol B
!"mﬂr.r ler. and may bind the crganization therehy.

i { hﬂrb} entify (had sald amhm-lty b not bekn amesided of vepealcd and remaing in Sl forma dnd effecy
3% of the. date of the comirastto whih s ceitificnte i sifnched, Thig msskmsf) rewiging valid i thirsy
(303days. 1 furher ertify that & B undératond that the Stake of Now. Hivnpuhire will cely on this contificéte
34 cvidencs it il person(s) listod abdve ourranily ocgupy e praition(s) indicated and thig they havo full
swhorily 1o bind the corpomifors. To the cxwnt that there sro.any limiits oy the authorify o amy listed
individust to bind the corporation in commets with the State of Now Hampehirg, all such Hinimtions are
expressly stated horein

Dited 0672472023, Attest;




- Frank Edelbjut Christine M. Brennan
Commissiener Deputy Commissioner
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street
LS Concerd, NH 03301

TEL. {603) 2716133
FAX (603} 271-1953

November 17, 2023

" His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House ) '
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

" REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Division of Learner Support to amend an existing sole source
contract with Friends Forever, Inc., Durham New Hampshire (vender code #331361) by increasing the.
price limitation by $350,000 from $394,000 to $744,000 to broaden the scope of services in providing
teen leadership programming for at-risk students, and with n6 change to the contract end date, effective
upor Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2024. The original contract was approved

* by Govemor and Council on March 22, 2023 (Item #101) modified on August 2, 2023, and October 2,
2023. 100% Federal Funds

Funds to support this request are available in the following account, in FY24 and FY25, with the authority
to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

06-56-56-562010-24370000 ESSER Il — ARP Act 2021

.Fiscal | Class/Account . Class Title Current Increased Revised
Year Budget (Decreased) Budget
HE Amount -

1 2023 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services $22.000 - $22,000

2024 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | $322,000 $£250,000 $572,000

2025 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Program Services | 350,000 $100,000 $150,000
Total | $394,000 $350,000 $744,000

", EXPLANATION
This request is sole source because the original contract was sole source. The Department is requesting
. the amendment to allow Friends Forever, Inc..(FFI) to revise its current prograrm to be more adaptable to
accommodate the needs of New Hampshire’s at-risk Students.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPRORTUNITIES



s

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu . ' )
and the Honorable Councﬂ
Page 2 of 2

FFlis an orgénization that specializes in this innovative approach to supporting at-risk students with a
team of accomplished professmnals in'the science, experiential education, civic engagement and

leadership areas.

The purpose of the existing contract is to facilitate addressing learning loss caused by the COVID-19 -
pandemic and aid in advancing student skills by providing access to educational tools that are interactive,
engaging and integrate multiple content areas. The program is specifically designed to address leaming
recovery in students identified as at-risk and needing immediate support using COVID 19 relief funding.
This amendment will allow for more flexibility in the delivery of the program outside of the current eight
day-on-campus experience and thus accommodate additional at-risk students.

Respectﬁllly ;{Zt?, , _ .

Frank Edelblut
Commissioner of Education

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



AMENDMENT TO
_ PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

Now come the New Hampshire Department of Education, Division of Learner Support, hereinafter “the
Agency,” and Friends Forever, Inc., Durham, NH, hereinafter “the Contractor”, and pursuant to an agreement between
the parties that was approved by Governor and Council on March 22, 2023 (Ttem #101) modified on August 2, 2023,
and October 2, 2023, hereby agree to modify same as follows:

1. Amend the P-37 Section 1.8 Price Limitation by increasing the amount by $350,600 from $394,000 to $744,000.
2. Amend Exhibit B by adding the following statement below the Tentative Cohort Schedule:

FFI shall create a version of its eight-day residential program to accommeodate more flexible delivery as
described in the following paragraph and shall implement a communication and outreach plan, including to .
. school districts, in support of public-school students.

FFI shall have the option, to better accommodate the integration of its programming with school district
scheduling, to unbundle its offering and offer the program: (a) in alternative settings, including in school, off
site, and remote settings (b) outside of the current eight day on-campus experience, and (c) as individual
course and credit offerings, not necessarily bundling 2.5 credits at one time.

3. Amend Exhibit C by adding: .
At the end of the first sentence: “or the equivalent per credit amount for unbundled credit programs.”

New Paragraph after the first paragraph: “FFI may utilize up to $150,000 in support of program design for
uncoupled delivery, direct program staff, student transportation,.and program communicaticn and outreach
to public schools.” .

4. Amend Exhibit C, Source of Funding teble by replacing it with the table below.

06-56-56-562010-24370000 ESSER IIi — ARP Act 2021

Fiscal | Class/Account Class Title Current Increased . Revised
Year Budget {Decreased) Budget
. ) ; Amount )
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $22,000 - $22,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $322,000 $250,000 $572,000
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services £50,000 $100,000 $150,000
. . Total | $394,000 $350,000 $744,000

* 6. All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect as originally set forth; and

7. This amendment shall commence upon Govemor and Council approval and shall terminate on September 30,
2024. -

This modification of an existing agresment is hereby incorporated by reference to the existin_g:agrecment by the parties
and must be attached to the said agreement,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Education

(Agency)
_Division of'" Commissiader’s Office

By' Q 121612023
Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education Date




_ Friends Forever Inc. :
’ I Name of Corporation (Contractor)

By: %—‘ 11/16/2023

Stéﬁhen Martineau, COE/Executive Director Date
Approved as to form, substance, and execution by the Attorney General this .6 day of December 2023,

% @../Q"-—-—-"”)\

Elizabeth, Brown Division of Attorney General Office

Approved by the Governor and Council this _day of ,20

By:




Certificate of Authority

"

B

Robert Raiche, hereby certify that I am a duly appointed representative of Fi'ien_ds Forever Ine.

hereby certify that Stephen Martineau, CEO, is authorized to execute contracts on behalf of Friends
orever Inc. and may bind the organization thereby.

by —

b hexeby certify that said authority has not' been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect
as of the date of the contract to-which this certificate is attached. ’I’hig'authority remﬁins valid for thirty
(30) days. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Ha:ﬁpshire will rely on this certificate
as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
althority to bind the corporation, To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed

dividual fo bind the corporation.in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are
1

¢

(pressly stated herein,

Dated: 11/16/2023

Treasurer




,, State of New Hampsliire
Department of State :

[

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FRIENDS FOREVER, INC. is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 27; 1995, 1 further
certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 239775
Certificate Number: 0006340664

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,
I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

" this st day of November A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan
Secretary of State




. . . FRIEFOR-01 . NHARDIN
ACORP CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE PATe o)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is'an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or he endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies.may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

"PRODUCER

Berniér Insurance Inc.
32 Wakefield St
Rochester, NH 03867

-

GoNTAcT Cathy Haughton . ]
[FBX oy (503) 9844663

PHONE
{AIC, No, Ext):
Bl ... chaughton@bernierins.com

i !N.S!JRER[S! AFFORDING COVERAGE
insurer 4 : Philadelphia Insurance Company.

NAIC#

INSURED « wsurer B : Eastern ‘Alliance Insurance Group
Friends Forever Inc. INSURERC ;
One Mergan Way * | INSURERD: a
Durham, NH 03824 INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TQ THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN RECUCED BY PA]D CLAIMS

sk TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDLIsUBR - POLICY NUMBER R e LTS .
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH GCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
~} cLams.mape OCCUR 4/17/2023 | 4/47/2024 | SAYAGE TORENTED s 100,000
L | MED EXP (Anv onepersony | § 5,000
- PERSONAL S ADVINJURY | 8 1,000,000
. |GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT AFPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 2,000,000
| X | poticy 1 FES PRODUCTS - COMF/GP AGG | 5 2,000,000
OTHER; ) $
A | AuTOMOBILE L1ABILITY ! CDEE MBINED SINGLELIMIT | 1,000,000
ANY AUTO RN 41712023 | 411712024 | poDILY INJURY (Perpersan) | S
[ | OWNED - SCHEDULED
| | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODCILY INJURY (Per aceldent) | S
R PROPERTY DAMAGE
| X | kuur SOMLY ES‘INC')%%NNELB | {Faf accident) s
= $
A L UMBRELLA LIAB _)(_ OCCUR EACH CCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE ang 41M7/2023 | 4712024 [, - oaire s 1,000,000
pep | X | rerentions 10,000 . . - X
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
B AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN : . 12024 X | Statute | ER
AV EROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE T 413012023 | 4/30/2024 | & | .o accioent s 500,000
? REn: m! EXCLLUDED? NiA 500,000
Rrandtory E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLGYEE] § i
If yas, desciba und - 500,000
BESCRITION OF SPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT | & a

DESCRIPTICN OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Education

25 Hall St.
Concord, NH 03301

]

~

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

N thie Q,MMEV

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

v

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



On Morgan Way
Ourham, HH 03824

Office: +1.603.392.530)

[
= ]

5
g §

FFl Vendor Contract Submission for NHED

Mission Statement: FFl empowers youth to become the best versions of themselves so théy
can help their community become the best version of itself.

FFl Board of Directors:

Name -Rale End of Term, Affiliation
Length of
-1 Service . .
Jameson French Chair 2023 Northland Forest Productors (CEQ), Quebec
. ’ 9 years Labrador Foundation (Chair), Land Trust
Alliance-(Chair), American Forest Foundation |
(Viee Chair), National Wildlife Federation Action:
Fund (Vice-Chair), Prescott Park Arts Festival
. (Immediate Past Chair)
Tim Allison Vice Chair | 2024 Community College System of New Hampshire
4 years (CFA), Cross Roads House (Board Member),
: The Music Hall (Board Member)
Jenifer Cannon Secretary | 2023 Impax Asset Managerent (VP, National
| 2 years Accounts-and Strategic Initiatives), Foundation
. for Seacoast Health (Board Member)
Bob Raiche, Jr,, Treasurer . | 2023 Century 21 (Broker)
v 8 years
Funso Afolayan Director 2023 University of New Hampshire (Professor)
8 years
Eric C, Buesing Director | 2025 McKinsey & Company (Partner)
6 years
Bob Gibson Director 2025 ConStrata Consulting {President and COO)
. > | O years
Catherine Mclaughlin-Hills Director | 2024 York Hospital (Mid-wife)
. 4 years
Chris Dwyer Director | 2025 RMC Research
Portsmouth NH 0 years Currier Museum Board




FRIENDS FOREVER INC.
. " Operating as -
FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL

(a nonprofit corporation)
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT_S
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

{Expressed in United States Dollars)
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT‘S AUCIT REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Friends Foraver Internaticnal -
burham, NH ’

-

We have audited the accompanying fi Fnanr.lal statements of Friends Forever [nternational (the “Company,”), whith comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related statement of activities, statement of cash flows, and statemertt or functional
expenditures for the year ending December 31, 2021, and the related rotes to the financial statements.

4 4

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Stataments

Management s responsihle for the preparation and {air presentation of these financial statements.in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the:Uaited States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of {inancial statements that are n'ee from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibllity

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these financial statemants based gn our audit. We conducted our audit in accerdance
with auditing standards generally accepted.in the United States of America. Thase standards require that.we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance abaut whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and dlsclosures inthe financlal statemants. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. tn making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contral relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in order Yo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
clreumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the affectiveness of the entity’s internal cantrol, Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, a5 well as evaluating the cverall presentation of the financial statemeats.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticlent and approgriate to provide 3 basis far our audit opinion.

Oplnion
1n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matecial respects, the financlal positidn of Friends Foraver
International as of December 31, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Adam ). Baker : J
Certified Public Accountant
Underwood, Minnesota

March 1D, 2022

e



'FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

. Assets
" Current Assets
. Cash and Cash Equivalents y
" Noncurrent Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Shares in Significant Events, Inc.
Total Noncurrent Assets
Fixed Assets
" Land
Buildings
Equipment
Other
- Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Fixed Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payabte

Long-term Liabilities

Notes Payable -
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Without Donor Restriction

Undesignated

With Donor Restriction
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets™

. ' 2021

2020
§ 198748 § 106,344
481331 ' 250,225
135,000 T
816,331 750.225
1,700,549 1,666,549
{311,755 1,310,626
15,995 15,995
5,500 5,500
(169,347) (133,738)
2,864,452 2,864,032
$3870531 $3.221501
$ 20697 S 13,193
720,205 740,654
720,205 740,654
740,902 753.847
3,095,627 2.455,380
43,002 12,265
53819531 $3,22L500




Operating Revenue

Ceniributions - Cash
Coniributiens - Tn Kind
Program Revenue
Fundraising Events

Total Operuting Revenues
. Operating Expendituores
Pregram Services:
‘Program Activitics
Total Program Services

Suppurting Services
Fundraising

Management and General -

Totul Supporting Services |

FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Relensed Donor Restricted Funds (Nate 4)

Tedal Expenditures

Other Fin'ancing Sources (Uscy)

Governmenul Grants
Unrealized Gain {(Loss)

Total Other 'Flnnnclng Sources (Uses)

Change In Net Assets
Net Assets « January 1, 2021

Net Assets - December 39, 2021

v

0 | | 2020 |
Without With
Daonor Donor
Restriction Restriction Tortal Tota!

S 569133 S . S "569.313 5 376,369
370.000 - 370,000 1,900,000 °
102,593 . 102,593 45039
122.398 . 122,398 140315 .

1164304 - 1,164,304 2,461,727
120,406 - 320.401 342.950
320,401 - - 320401 342,950
114,580 - 114,950 64,221
141,740 . 161,740 154,339
276,720 . 276,720 218,560
590420 . 597,121 561,510
85.007 - $5.007 254,25
18.785 . 18,785 (1,723)
103.792 . £6.351 252,402
670,975 . 654,558 2,152,619

1,467,654 . 2,467,654 315015

S 3138629 5 - $3.122210 53467654




FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
| STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Excess Revenues over Expenditures’
Accounts Payable '

Loan te Signi'ﬁcanl Events '
Prepaid Asscts
Depreciation Expense

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Van Purchase’ '

Principal Payment of Note Payable

Net cash provided by linancing activities

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities

] Purchase of Investment Securities
Unrealized Gain on Investments
Donation of Shares in Significant Events
Donation of Land and Building

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net cash increase for peried
Cash in banks at beginning of period
Cash in banks at end of period

2021

$ 670,975
8,527
(8.157)
(607}

35,054

705,792

(1,500)

(1,474)

(2,974)

' (309,340)
(18,785)
(335,000)

(35,000).

(598,125)

104,693
04,035

$ 198,748



Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For YeAR Enpep Decemaer 31, 2021

1. SUMMARY

Friends Forever International, Inc. {Organization} is 2 non-profit 501{c)3 organization. Was mcorporated on March 23,
1997 under the New Hampshire Nonprofit Corperation Act and js a tax-exempt organization under section 501{c)3 of
the Internal Revenue Cade. The Organization’s mission is to help build a better world by utilizing our rhost underutitized
asset: youth. They work with communities around the globe to build the leadership abilities of their youth from diverse
backgrounds to tackle local and global issues. '

The Organlz;ftlon is exempt from fedecal income taxation under Séction 501{c)3 of the tnternal Revenue Code [IRC}, For
the year ending December 31, 2021, the Organization did not have income unrelated to its exempt purpases and
.was not subject to the Unrefatéd Business lncome Tek. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the
internal Revenue Service to be a publicly supporied organization, and not classified as a pnvate foundatlon under the
meaning of Section 509{a) of the IRC. .

2. SUMMARY OF SIGN.IFICANT ALCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Drganization cenform ta accounting principles generally accepted in

"the United States of America ("US GAAP") for Not-For-Profits. The significant accounting and reporting policies’
used by the organization are described subsequently to enhance the usefuiness and understandability of the
financial statements .

Use of Estimates

The preparation of finantial statements requires management to make estimates and assurnptions that affect the
teported amaunts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the [-eported amounts of assets and
liabilities 8t the date of the financial statements. On an ongoing basis, the Organization’s management evaluates the
estimates and assumptions based upon historical experience and various other factors and circumstances. The
Organization’s management believes thal the estimates and assumptions are reasonable in the circumstances; however,
the actual results could diffes from those estimates.

. i

Net Assets.

The financial statements report net assets and changes in ret assets in two classes that are based upon the existence ar
absence of restrictions on use that are placed by its donors, as follows:
“ Unrestricted Net Assets .
Unrestricted net ossets are resources ovailable to- support operations. The only limits on the use of unrestncred
net assets ore the broad limits resulting from the nature of the organizotion, the environment in which :t
operates, the purposes specified in it's carporate documents and its application for tox-exempt status, and any
limits resufting from contractual agreements with creditors ond others that ore eatered into in the course of

its operations.




Friends Forever Intarnational
NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(FOR YEAR ENOED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2, SUI;VTMARY OF.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

i

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for a particular purpose or
ina pamcular {future period. The orgamzatlon s unspent contritiutions are classified in this ¢lass if the donor

limited their use, as are the unspent appreciation of its donor-restrictad endowment funds

When a donor’s restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner spacified by the donor or by
the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the finandcial statements by reclassifying the

net assets from temporarily restrictad to unrestricted net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equwa!ents include zll cash in banks, The Company 5 cash are depos:ted in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management beheves are creditworthy,

Accounts Receivabie »
Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross

customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and historical
experience of losses Incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all

contractual payments due will aot be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,

2020, the Qrganization determined that no reserve was necessary.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation . .

Property Fixed Assets are reported in the statement of financial position at cost, if purchased, and at fair value at the
date of donation, if donated. Equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $1,000 or more and a useful life life when
acquired of more than 1 year. Repairs and maintenance that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are
expensad as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives of the assets:

Buildings 27 years
Equipment 5-10 years -
Computer Software . 5years
Vehicles 7-10 years

\
Fixad Assets are reviewed for impairment whan a significant change in the assat's use or another indicator of possible
impairment is present. No impairment losses were recognized in the financial statements in the current period.

» -




Friends Foraver international
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FoRr YeaR ENoED Decemper 31, 2021 -~

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Continued)

. Accounting for Contributions -

Contributions, including unconditional promises te give, are recognized when received.. All conttibutions are reported
as increases in unrastricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in future perigds or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in temporarily restricted net assets. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an
Implied restriction to be used in the year the payment is due, and therefore are reported a3 temporarily restricted
untif the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended 1o support activities of the current fiscal year.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all
.conditions on which they depend are subs;ant:ally met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions ,

Material contributions in 2 form other than cash orinvestments are recorded as follows. If the organization receives
a contribution of land, buildings, ar equipment, the contributed asset is recognized as an asset at its estimated fair
value at the date of gift, pravided that the value of the asset and its estimated usefu} hfe meets the organization’s
capitalization policy. Danated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated fair

. value of similar space for rent undér similar conditions. If the use of the space is promised unconditionaily for 3
period greater than one year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional promise to give at
the date of gift and as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed. .

Donated Services

The Organization receives danated services from volunteers that are used far the rebuild program. The volunteers have
donated significant amounts of time and services in the program. However, only a portion of the services meet the
criteria for recognition in financial statements. GAAP afiows racognition of contributed services aaly if (a) the services.
create or enhance non-financial assets or {b) the services would have been purchased if not provided by contribution,
require specialized skilis, and are provided by individuals possessing those skifls.

Expense Recognition and Allocation

The cost of providing the organization’s programs and other activities is summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of activities and statement of functional expenses. Expenses that can be identified with a specific
program or support service are charged directly to that program or suppart service. Costs common to muttiple
functions have baen allocated among the various functions benefitted.

.

General and administrative expenses inciude those costs that are not directly identifiable with any specific program,
but which provide for the overall support and direction of the Organizatien.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in contributions received'in future years
The Organization generally does not conduct its fundraising activities in :onjunction with its other activities. in the
few cases in which it does, such as when the annual report or donor acknowledgements contaln requests for
contributions, joint costs have been allocated between fundraising and management and general expenses.in
accordance with standards for accounting for costs of activities that include fundraising. Additionally, advert:smg
costs are expensed as incurred.

B
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Friends Forever International
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OR YEAR ENDED ceMBER 31, 2021

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued) ) '

Falr Value of Financial lnstrlirr!en'ts

The Orgamzatxon reports its fair value measures usfng a three-feval hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to

measure fair value. This hierarchy, established by GAAP, requires that entities maximize the use of observable inputs s
and mmm'uze tha use of unobservable mputs when measuring Fair va]ue The three levels of inputs used to measure )
fair value are as follows:

tevel 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are acce55|ble at the measurement date far Identical assets
or habllmes <

Level 2—Observable Inputs other than quoted grices included in leve! 1'that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include

o Quoted prices for similar'assets or liabilities in active markets;
s Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active;

s Observable inputs other than quoted prices for the asset or liability {for example, interest rates and yield.curves); and
« Inputs derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correfation ar by other means.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflacting the Organization’s assumptions, consistent with reasonablv available assumptions
made by other market partlupants These valuations require significant judgment. ’

When available, the organization measures fair value using level 1inputs because they generally provide the

_ most reliable evidence of fair value. However, level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and
liabilities that the organization is required to measure at fair vatue (for example, unconditional promises to give
and in=kind contributions.)

Subsequent Events
The Organization considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheets date, but prior to the issuance
of the financtal statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require

additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 10, 2022 which is the date the financia!
statements were issued. :

Recently Issued and Addpted Accounting Pronocuncements

in May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 201409 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company adopted ASU No.
2014-09 on January 1, 2018. There wers ne adjustments necessary to opening retained earnings/{accumulated deficit).

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, Balonce Sheet Clossification of Deferred Taxes. ASU No. 2015-17
requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as nancurrent in a classified statement of financial position.
This guidance Is effective for the period beginning January 1, 2018. The Company early adopted the provisions of ASU
No. 2015-17 during tha 2018 year.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU Na. 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842). The new standard introduces 3 new lessee
model that brings substantially all leases onto the balance sheets, The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of adoption of ASU No. 2016-
02 on its financial statements, but generally would expect that the adoption of this new standard will result in a material
increase in the ong-term assets and liabilities of the Company as result of our lease agreements.




Friends Forever International
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @

For Year ENDED DeceMper31, 2021

3. CONTRlBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

In-2021, the Organization received 3 donated property that included a building and land in Belize, as well as 290 Shares of Stack in
an 5-Corp. An appraisal was obtaingd from a licensed appraiser, which is within FASB ASC Topic 820's guidelines for valuatrng

contributed nonfinancia! assets. The following were appraised at:”

Land . $ 34,000

Buildings . ] 5 1,000

Shares in S:Corp . -1 § 335000
Total Contributed Nonfinancial s 370,006

Assets

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 10, 2022, which s the date the financial statements were
available to be issued, Events otcurring after that date have not been evaluated to determme whether a change in

the financial statements would be required.

-10 -



Advertising

Bank Fees

Depreciation Expense
Event Expenses
Information Technolopy
Insurance ’
Interest Expense
Miscellaneous Expenses
Office Expenses

Payrall

Payrol] Taxes

Printing, Postage, and Shipping
Professional Fees
Program Fees

Taxes and Licenses

_ Travel and Training
Lhilities

Total Expenses

FRIENDS FOREVER INTERNATIONAL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

_ Program Services

Support Services

Lorde

Leadership ]
Development Management and Total Supporting .
Programs ) - Fundraising General Service Total .
3 g 3 - $ - 3 8
- ' - 11,014 1.014 1.014
19,086 - 15,968 15,968 35,054
- 67,422 - 67,422 67,422
103 5,055 1,480 6,535 6,638
8,000 - (1,147 11,147 19,147
1,500 - 24,354 24,354 25,854
2,013 - - - 2,013
4,055 - 13.991 13,991 18.046
152,601 23477 58,693 82,170 234,770
9:628 1.481 3.703 5,184 . 14812
1.798 17.476 7,342 24,818 26,616
5,155 69 6,375 6.444 11,599
61.527 - - - . 67,527 -
- - 16.337 16,337 16,337
26418 - " - - 26,418
22,510 - 1,336 1,336 23,846
$ 320,401 % (14,980 . 3 161,740 $ 597,121

b . 276,720

-11-




Alexandra DesRuisseaux
N Program &Com}nqni.ty Engagement Coordinator
\ at Friends Forever International

- "EDUCATIQN"
University of Maine al Presque Iste
B.S. Elementary Education

Secondary Education Certification

Psychology Minor
Social Studies Concentration
May 2019

. = ¥

; alex@?f.inferngﬁon&l

" PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE |

Program and Communily Directs, designs. implements, and evaluates progrcmmiﬁg with
Engagement Coordinofor youih from diverse global backgrounds. )
Friends Forever International v Development of crealive and innovative curriculum

Durham, NH| 12/21-Cunrent

Soclal Studies Teacher and

ELO Coordinator

- Rochester Learning Academy
Rochester, NH| 08/19- 04/22

Teen Leaders Club Dlrector
YMCA of Strafford County
Rochester, NH-| 01/21- 06/22

Lead Camp Counselor
The Gundalow Company

Portsmouth, NH | 04/21-08/21

Summer Camp Sclence

, Instructor
Edventure More, Camp EDMO

San Francisco, CA|06/20-08/20

Counselor in Tralning (CIT)
Program Coordinator

YMCA Camp Sorgent
Mermrimack, NH|06/18-08/19

v Oversees fraining of international alumni ieaders

v'Manages program schedules/ budgets including collaboration
with partners - : :

v Supports and plays leading role in major fundraising and special
events : .

Teaching a variety of Social Studies and Elective courses to High

Schoot studentis in @ competency based. altemafive school

sefting. Beginning in the fail of 2021, as the ELO Coordinator, |

have also been responsible for overseeing and facilitating credit

bearing experiences outside of the classroom setting.

v Building engaging. interdisciplinary curriculum

v Giving individualized instruction to ensure progress on
504 and {EP goals .

v Educating students with diverse behavioral/ academic needs

Facilitoting meelings, design leadership development and
community service opporiunities.

v Faciitating and leading group meetings

v Organizing club finances, paperwork, and records

individual

Facilitation and cumiculum developmen for a summer camp -
focused on maritime heritage and conservation.

v Designing engaging science-based summer curriculum

v Facilitating activities and safety aboard an active vessel

Engaging a group of 8-15. middle school aged camp
participants in remote instruction and activities.

v Teaching remote science-based curriculum

v Facilitating social emofional leaming-based activities

Overséeing the daily schedule and program creation for the
Counselor in Training .Program. :
v Organized activities and stoff assignments

v Guided teens in establishing a summer long fundraising effort

.



£

"PROFESSIONAL,

.

EXPERIENCE [CONT.)

"Sfudeni Teacher and
Substitute Teacher

Ross A. Lurgio Middle School
Bedford, NH|01/19-05/19

Research Assistant
University of Maine at Presque

) Isle College of Arts and
, Sciences

Presque Isle, ME|05/18 05/‘!9

Unlversity of Maine at Presque
Isle Student Representative
University of Maine System

Board of Trustees
Bangor, ME| 05/16-05/18

Cabin Counselor
Camp Walt Whitman

Piermont, NH| .04/17-08/17

Resident Assistant

University of Maine at
Presque isle

Presque lsle ME| 01/14-12/17

lndependeni and supervised teaching in 7' grade Social Studies.

" Substituting in various content areas within 7i0/8" grades.

v Submitting weekly reflections, lessons plans, and 1ime logs
_\/ Developing and feaching classroorn lessons and unit plan

Developing science curriculum aligning with NGSS standards

based on the research of Dr. Jason Johnston.

v Staying familiar with University research on the relafionship
between climate change and bird migration patterns

v Credting o cohesive unit plan for 6-8" grade students to be
published with research

‘Represented the students of my compus while initiafing efforts
relative to'the student body needs and advocating for state
investment in higher education within a 2-year elected term,

v Staying informed on the needs. and concerns of students

v Acting'as a liaison between the Board and the Student Govt

Living with and co-leading o ¢abin of eleven-year-old campers
through daily activities, day hikes, and overnight trips.

- ¥ Building a.cabin community and culture within my bunk

v Overseeing daily needs of assigned campers

Helping orient new students and design programs based on
engaging new students.

¥ Facilitated activities to get students involved in campus life

¥ Inform residents of and enforce campus policies on. duty hours

AWARDS/HONORS

ORGANIZATIONS

v Malne NEW: Leadershlp Progrom Graduate
Margaret Chase Smith Policy Center, May 2019

v Outstanding Secondary Education Major of .

the Yeor

U, Of Maine-- Presque Jsle May 2019
v Heart and Soul Student Award
- Maine Campus Compact, April 2017

v Resident Assistant of the Year

U. Of Maine- Presque lsle, May 2016

v Member of the Transition Community of
~ Practice and ELO Coordinator Network '
Seacoast ELO Netwaork 09/21-Current
v President of The Student Government

Assoclation
U. Of Maine- Presque lsle 08/1 8-'12/1 8

v Founding Member of the Inciusion and
Clvility Task Force
U. Of Maine- Presque Isle 11/16-12/18
v Vice President of the Sludent Education
Association of Maine
(State Chapter VP and Local Chapter VP)
~U. Of Maine~ Presque Isle 09/16-12/18



Experience :
LT ICIAN / CRISIS SERVICE VIDER (M

- SWEETSER - MAINE METTAL HEALTH PROVIDER

SEPTEMBER 2021 - CURRENT
. Child & Family Aftercare Program: Represents youth who are receiving or has received

services and supports related to the diagnosis of 2 mental iliness, serious emotional
disturbance, and/or developmental delay. Orchestrates at-home visits to provide
individual carerreflective of both child and family’s unique areas of concern. Ensures child
and family's fiuid t@nsition into independent, sustainable healthy practices within the
heme and/or communit\i post initial crisis services and treatment(s).

WW&W

JUNE 2020 - AUGUST 2021 '

Organized public marches and civil disobedience events caliing attention to social
inequities found both locally and nationally. Facilitated and spoke on virtual informaticnal
panels discussing the intersectionality of identity related oppressions, Collaborated with
other advocacy groups to cohast events, share resources, and promote accessibility across
audiences. Established updated foundation of knowledge to provide to local scheol
systems, library networks, and other community spaces for further reference.

COMMUNITY ADVISOR; LESLEY UNIVERSITY OFFICE OF RESIDENCE LIFE
AUGUST 2017 - MAY 2018

Lived within campus residence halls overseeing 45 students as a resource for campus
matarials and policies. Coordinated 2 to 4 monthly events to facilitate residential unity
while recording financial expenses and maintaining a block budget. Mentored residents
through both academic and personal conflicts. Served roughly 40 hours per month on
duty as a student first responder and kept.detailed documentation for reported incidents.

CAMP DIRECTOR & COUNSELOR; YORK PARKS AND RECREATION

SUMMER OF 2013 - 2017

Director of Summer Track program, ages 8-15; developed weekiy practice and training
regiments, oversaw coaching staff development, organized and facilitated cormnpetitions
with other team directors, Counselor of Junior Adveature Camp, oversaw 3-5 year old age

group; executed adapted daily activities and schedules, chaperoned off site field trips,
contributed to both opening and closing procedures.



[IEE

LIEIH

Matti'lew Arsenault

Education -
University Of Southérn Maine
Graduate Class of 2022: Certificate Graduate Study'of" Public and Nonprofit Management,

Undergraduate Class of 2021: Bachelars's Degree in Leadership anci‘Organizational
Studigs, Community Leadershlp and Civi¢ Engagement Concentration. Graduated with
Summa Cum Laude Honors

Skills & Qualifications

Certified in: Mental Health Rehabilitation Technician / Crisis ‘Services Personal (MHRT CSP),
Child and Adolescent Level of Care/Service Intensity Utilization System (CALOCUS-CASII),

.Counseling to Access to Lethal Means (CALM), and various crisis intervention protocols.

Able to work with diverse groups of people. Capable of facilitating both small and large
group activities. Adaptable to compliment various work envirenments. Trained in areas
regarding conflict resolution and effective communication,. Detail orientated. Punctual and
reliable. Desire to learn and expand capabilities through new experiences. Educated and
continuously expanding further knowledge on diversity, equity, and inclusion. Competent
in Microsoft Office.

References

_Jamie Baburek (she/her/hers})

Clinical Supervisar; Sweetser Crisis Services
Phone; 207.448.5757.

Email: jbaburek@sweetser.org

Joyce Gibson {she/hei/hers)

Former Professar; University of Southern Maine
Phone: 978.501.6194

Email: jgibsen@maine.edu _

§and ra dadelka (she/her/hers)

‘Former Residence Life Area Coordinator; Le;sley University

Phone: 732.861.7117

Email: sandramjodelka@gmail.com



Amelia Burke

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS | _

Experienced coordinator in nonprofit settings with students and scholars from different countries and

. cultures. Dedicated to creating a diverse and inclusive environment for individuals from afl over the world.

Experienced in program management, grant writing, fundraising, and process improvement. A quick

léarner skilled in working collaboratively and liaising with peers.

~ a  Proficientin French ‘ ,

» Proficient in Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, PowerPoint)
» Proficient in PeopleSoft and Little Green Light systems !
» Proficient in social media platfortns )

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Friends Forever International - Durham, NH

Special Projects Manager ‘ January 2021 - Present
Special Projects Coordinator January 2020 - January 2021

AmeriCorps VISTA _ January 2018 - fanuery 2020

@« Assistin executing leadership programs for all ages but in particular youth ages 15-18 from
Northern Ireland, Israel, Cyprus, and the US. -

» Facilitate workshops that focus on team building, communication, goal setting, public speaking,
creativity, and service-learning : '

= Travel to partner locations, such as Northern [reland, Israel, and New Orleans, to provide in-person

. leadership programming - )

= Manage daily operations of all FFl campuses in New Ham pshire, Northern ireland, and Belize

= Help recruit and manage the organization’s volunteers, including alumni of our programs, interns,
community members/organizations, and corporate volunteers ‘

= Write and submit grants to fund an array of projects and programming initiatives

« Coordinatar special events for the organization '

= Complete other various projects as assigned by Executive Director _

PS it Matters, Bags 4 My Cause - Portsmouth, NH
Program Manager July 2018 - January 2019
“»  Serve as program director for reusable bag donation program for clients
« Carry out daily execution, maintenance, and improvement of bag donation program
= Work with over 1,000 nonprofits to ensure understanding of bag program, smooth and efficient
", execution of the program, and obtainment of fuil benefits of program participation
*  Maintain database records, such as nonprofit organizational information

Massachusetts General Hospital, Department of Neuralogy - Boston, MA '
Visa and Operations Coordinator July 2016 - June 2018
s  Serve as the primary contact for all visa and green card-related guestions and issues
»  Advise over 100 international scholars and students on immigration regulations
» - Prepare visa applications to send to internationa! office for processing

AY



* Support new international scholars and students with the transition to living and working in the
Boston area by providing guidance and relevant information

= Manage projects for Chlef, Vice Chairs of Research, and Administrative Directors

»  (Create and implement department-wide SOPs, trainings, and other materials

National {nstitutes of Health, Dmsmn of International Services, HHS - Bethesda, MD
Visa Coardinator December 2014 - June 201 6
Program Support September 2014 December 2014
= Assisted in the processing of visa cases for visiting foreign scientists
«  Prepared immigration petitions to send to-USCIS
* Completed data entry into their database

EDUCATION

SIT Graduate Institute, Brattleboro, VT
M.A. international Education - May 2018
Salve Regina University, Newport, Rl .
B.A. French, Minor in Globa!l Studies, Magna Cum Laude -~ May 2014
Université Catholique de.Lyon, Lyon, France
Diploma Level B2+ - Spring 2013 ~
Completed intensive French language immersion classes in grammar and oral commumcanon
throigh an exchange program

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE )

Friends Forever International, Durham, NH -'AmeriCorps VISTA January 2019 - January 2020
‘ r  Completed one year aof capacity building public service .

World Learning, Washington D.C. - Iragi Young Leaders Exchange Program Decembers 2016-2018

* Reviewed applications submitted by prospective participants for the Department of State-
sponsored program

PROFESSIONAL AWARDS _

Spot Award - Massachusetts General Hospital . June 2018
Partners in Excellence Award - Partners Healthcare ’ April 2018
Spot Award - Massachusetts General Hospital May 2017
Spot Award ~ Massachusetts General Hospital February 2017

Distinguished Achievement Award - Kelly Services _ April 2016



Stephen Martineau steve@imtermatons)
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Friends Forever International — Durham, NH

CEOQ/Exccutive Director: November 2005-Present
Oversee execution leadership programs for &l ages that empower individuals to have a positive impact on their
communilies

. Oversee all programmmg mcludmg curriculum development, implementation, preparation, facnluahon,
elc,

Oversee all organizational, f' inances

Manage all staff members

Fundraise for organization via major donors, grants, corporauons etc.

Maintain all campuses and manage daily operations

MYTOWN (Multicultural Youth Tour of What's Now) — Boston, MA
Marketing Director April 2002 - October 2005

" Boston Children's Museum — Boston, MA .
Events & Functions Coordinator ) February 2004-March 2002

Stixx on the Waterfront — U.S. Virgin Islands .
Bartender T August 1999 - October 2000

Habitat for Humanity — South Carolina . y,
Construction Coordinator for Volunteers ) Jantuary 1998 — August 1998
EDUCATION

College of the Holy Cross, Worcester, MA
B.A. History — 1997

BOARD EXPERIENCE

Friends Forever Europe — Annalong, Northem Ireland

General Secretary of Board ‘ September 2010-FPresent
" World Affairs Counecil of New Hampshire — Manchester, NH

Board Member May 2019-November 2021



Percentage of Personnel:

One Morgan Way
‘Durharn, KH 03824

Diffeer +1.603.397.5301

~ FH

Name Title Percentage of Salary Paid by
. _Contract

Alex DesRuisseaux: Program Manager 0%

Matthew Arsenault Special Projects Coardinator | 0%

Amelia Burke Special Projects Manager 0%

Stephen Martineau CEQ 0%




Christine M. Brennan
Deputy Commissionsr

Frank Edelblut
Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE '
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street
Concord, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 2713495

September 28, 2023 ,,

Modification to: Friends Forever, Inc., Contract
. -Approved by Governor and Council on March 22, 2023, Item #101

Authorize New Hampshire Department of Education, Commissioner’s Office, to modify the contract with
Friends Forever, Inc. (FFI), Durham, New Hampshire (VC# 331361), in the amount not to exceed
$394,000 to provide teen leadership programming for at-risk students to facilitate learning recovery in
the content areas of -science, social studies, communication,. writing, lecadership and experiential
education. As of September 28, 2023, Friends Forever, Inc., will rrioc_iify its accounting unit to reflect
ESSER II1 — ARP Act 2021 throughout contract end. See Budget Modification Table.
Modification to include: : ; .
-  Funding source to reflect ESSER IlI — ARP Act 2021 accounting unit: 24370000, -
o The not to exceed amount of $394,000 will remain unchanged. .
¢ NOTE: all other contractual obligations remain’in place as established in the original contract.

3

100% Federal Funds.

Furids to suppert this request are available in FY24 and FY25 in the account titled ESSER III - ARP Act .
2021, with the authority to adjust encumbrances between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without
further Governor approval, if needed and justified.

’ TDD Access: Relay NH 741 .
EGQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Page 2 of 2
Budpget Modification Table:

FY23 | FY23s |  FY23
- . ) .Original ‘Change Adjusted
06-56-56-562010-24370000-102-500731 $22,000 - $22,000
Contracts for Program Semces -
TOTAL * s $22,000 - - 522,000 ¢
~ FY24 FY24 FY24
. .. Original Change Adjusted
06-56-56-562010-24370000-102-500731 $322,000 - $322,000
Contracts for Program Semccs .. )
TOTAL $322.000 | - 8322000
FY25 FY25 FY25
. o Original Change Adjusted
06-56-56-562010-24370000-102-500731 ) $50,000 - $50,000
Cantracts for Program Services -
TOTAL T $50,000 - £50,000
_ FY23 FY24___ | FY2S Total _
| TOTAL ADJUSTED BUDGET | - $22,000 $322,000 $50,000 $394,000 °

Limitation of Price: -
Upon mutual agreement between the Department of Education and the contractor, line ftems in this budget

- may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the total budget exceed the price limitation of $354,000.
FF1 will monitor program participation and reject participation that would exceed $394,000.

Funds are contingent on:
1.) Availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operating budget

2.) Attainment of contractual and performance goals and measures,

QA/z %M/I-)atenomzoﬁ a,., Date; 7/ 7/ L3

Frank Edelblut , :
Commissioner ) xecutive Director
Department of Education

' r:ends Forever, Inc

. TDD Accoss: Relay NH 744
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER. EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES

: CamScanner



Frank Edelblut
Commissioner

Christine M. Brennan .
Deguty Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street
Concerd, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-3495

 July 27,2023

Modification to: Friends Forever, Inc., Contract
Approved by Governor and Council on March 22, 2023, Item #101

Authorize New Harpshire Department of Education, Commissioner’s Office, to modify the contract with
Friends Forever, Inc. (FFI), Durham, New Hampshire (VC# 331361), in the amount not to exceed
$394,000 to provide teen leadership programming for at-risk students to facilitate learning recovery in
the content areas of science, social studies, communication, writing, leadership’ and experiential
education. As of July 21, 2023, Friends Forever, Inc., will modify its budgets by transferring the amount
of $22,000 in unspent funds from the FY23 budget to the FY24 budget to account for the participating
student count for the fiscal year. See Budget Modification Table.

Modification to include:
¢ Funds in the FY23 budget will decrease by $22,000.
¢ Funds in the F¥24 budget will increase by $22,000.
o The not to exceed amount of $394,000 will remain unchanged. T
NOTE: all other contractual obligations remain in place as established in the original contract.

100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in F¥23, FY24 and FY25 in the account titled ESSER III -

. ARP Act 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
with the authority to adjust encumbrances between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further
Governor approval, if needed and justified. )

“ TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



Page2 of 2
Budget Modification Table:

&

FY23 FY23 FY23
. ) Original Change Adjusted
06-56-56-362010-19580000-102-500731 ’ $44,000 $(22,000) $22,000
-Contracts for Program Services .
TOTAL s $44,000 | $(22,000) $22,000
FY24 - FY24 FY24
Original Change |  Adjusted
06-56-56-562010-19580000-102-500731 . $300,000 $22,000 $322,000
Contracts for Program Services -
| TOTAL . $300,000 322,000 $322,600
‘ FY23 FY25 FY25
' Original Change Adjusted
06-56-56-362010-19580000-102-500731 550,000 - $50,000
Contracts for Program Services
TOTAL $50,000 - ~ $50,000
. FY23 FY24 FY25 | Total
-TOTAL ADJUSTED BUDGET $22,000 $322,000 $50,000 $394,000

Limitation of Price: ]

Uport mutual agreement between the Department of Education and the contractor, line items. in this budget
may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shali the total budget exceed the price limitation of $394,000.
FFI will monitor program participation and reject participation that would exceed $394,000.

Funds are contingent on:,
1.) Availability and continued appropriation of funds in future operating budget

2.) Attainment of contractual and performance goals and measures.

Qué W Date: 8/2/2023 ;;E B Date: 7-27-23

Frank Edelblut Steﬁﬁen Martineau
Commissioner CEO/Executive Director
Department of Education F ricnci_s Forever, Inc.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
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Frank Edelblut

Christine M. Brennan
Cammissioner . Deputy Commissioner
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301

TEL. (803) 271-3495

FAX.(603) 271-1932 "
February 22, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hororable Council

State House .

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Division of Leamer Support, to enter into a sele source contract
with Friends Forever, Inc., Durham, New Hampshire (vendor code #331361), in an amount not to exceed -
$384,000, to provide teen leadership programming for at-risk students to facilitate leaming recovery in

the content areas of science, social studies, communication, writing, leadership and experiential

education, effective upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2024. 100% Federal
Funds. g .

Funds to support this request are available in the accounts titled ESSER IlI - ARP Act 2021, inFY23,
and are anticipated to be available in FY24 and FY25 upon approval of the biennial budget, with the
ability to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years through the budget office without further Govemor &
Council approval if needed and justified.

CEY23  FY24 FY25 Total
06-56-562010-24370000-102-500731 $44,600. $300,000 £50,000 $354,000
Contract for Program Services - X

EXPLANATION

The Department is requesting a sole source contract because Friends Forever, Inc. is an organization that
specializes in this innovative approach to supporting at-risk students with a team of accomplished
professionals in the science, experiential education, civic engagement and leadership areas. The team has |
backgrounds in successfully achieving results in engaging students in activities that attract them to

develop leadership skills and connects lessons to meet the academic standards of New Hampshire. Many
of the students participating in the program are referred to Friends Forever, Inc, by schoo! districts,
because of observed needs for additional supports and mentoring.

TDDO Access: Relay NH 711 -
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES N



His Excellency, Govemnor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council
.Page 2 -
This 5 program will be used to faclluatc addressing learning loss caused by the COViD-19 pandemlc and
aid in advancing student skills by providing access to educational toals that are interactive, engaging and
integrate muluplc content areas. In addition, this unique program incorporates the exploration of
leadership, science and civic engagement while developing necessary skills for success in the lcarmng
environment, graduation, as well post-secondary college, and career readmcss

Friends Forcver, Inc., is a New Hampshire nonprofit organization that specializes in providing leaming
recovery and student leadership dcvelopmcnt to at-risk identified students by t'ocusmg on content and

skil! development in the areas of communication, science, writing, social studies, civic engagement, ‘and
experiential Jcarning, This program is specifically designed to address lcarning recovery in students
identified as at-risk and needing immediate support using COVID-19 relief funding. The need to expedite
services utilizing an innovative program to address leaming loss and increase successful student outcomes:
for at-risk youth is imperative.

Respectfull) submited, : .

Frank Edelblut
Commissioner of Education

.

FEl:mw '

.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL O'PPORTUNH'IES



FORM NUMBER P-37 (versio.n 12/11/2019)

Notice; This.agreement and all of its attachinents shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified 10 the agency and agreed 10 in writing prior to signing the contract, s

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree s follows:
> ) GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION. .

-t

[.1 State Agency Name

Department of Education

1.2 State Agency Address

25 Mail Street, Concord, NI 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Friends Forever, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

| Morgan Way, Durham, NI 01824

1.6 Account Number
See Exhibit C

.5 Contractor Phone
Number
603-397-5301

Seplember 30, 2024

1.7 Completion Date (.8 Price Limitalioﬁ

$394,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jessica Lescarbeau

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-0058

1 1.1l Contractor Signature

_21——' - Due: 2022123

[.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatery .

Stephen Mnrtineau. CEO/Executive Director

Date: 3/1/2023

113 Hiate Agc%

.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Educalibn

I.t5 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel {if applicable}

By

Director, On:

i.16 Approval by the Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if a;}p!fcabfe)

BY: Fadbonina fokhinatdre

On: 3 / Z/ZOZ‘B

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Courcil (if applicable)

G&C ltem numbér:

G&C Meeting Date: .

Page 1 of 4

SM

Contractor Initials
" Date 222123



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acling through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State”), engages contractor identified in ‘block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B-which is lncorporaled
herein by reference (“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval,of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shali
become effective on the date. the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,

unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement.

shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior o the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the scle risk of the
Contractor, and in the eveni that this Agreement does not become
effeclive, the State shall have no liability ‘to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.

Contractor must complete all Services by the Comp!euon Date’

specifiedin block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Apreement to the .

contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the conlinuance of paymenis hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and.continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder In excess of such available appropriated funds. [n the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right 1o withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or

_terminate the Services under this Agreement immiediately upon
giving the Contraclor notice of such -reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account Or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

§. CONTRACT PR]CE/PR]CE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT,

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

Page2of4 .

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shatl
have no lability to the Contracior cther than the contract price.
5.3. The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement thise
tiquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Nowwithstanding any provision in this Agreement 16 the
contrary, and notwithstandinig unexpected cifcumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT -
OPPORTUNITY. )

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with ail applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited 1o, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, mles, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these reguiations.
The Contractor shafl also comply with 2!l applicable intellectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination,

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement, !

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide al! personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all. personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tem of
this Agreement, and for 2 period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement, This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreemient,

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative, In the event of any
dispute concering the interpretation of this Agreement, the.

‘Conltracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State,
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- 8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more-of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of defsult hereunder (“Event
of Default™):
8.1.1 failure to perform -the Services satisfactori Iy or on
schedule;
§.1.2 failure to submit any repon reQuucd hereunder andfor
B.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, lerm or condition of
‘this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
" take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defeult and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification ol'ume, thirty {30) days from the
* date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not umely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afler giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Evenl of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under, this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue 10 the Contractor during the
-period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
* shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a wrilten notice specifying the Event of
Defsult and set off against any other obligations the Stale may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; end/or
8.2.4 give the Conlractor a written notice speclfymg the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law ar in equity, or
both.
8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard {o that Evert of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upan any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in par, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contraclor that
the State is exercising its option 1o terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver 10 the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detil all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be tdentical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit o the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement,

10. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean afl
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited 1o, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic -
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,. all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govened by N.H. RSA

chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires

prior written approval of the State,

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contrector, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contracter shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wrilten notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (2} merger,

" consoiidation, or a ransaction or series of related transactions in

which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fiy percent (50%) or more of the

- voling shares or similar equity interests, or combined voling

power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wrilten notice and consent of the State,
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of {or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcentractors, including but not limited 10 the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by thé Contractor arising under
this paragraph’] 3. Notwithstanding the- foregomg, nothmgherem
contzined shali be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity'of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Stete. This covenant in paragraph 13. shall survive the
» «ermination of this Agreement:

14, INSURANCE. L o
4.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole éxpense; obtain and
continuously maintain in force, end shall requ:rc any
subcontractor or assignee (0 cbtam and mairtain in force; the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general llabllny insurance against ali claims
‘of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 apgregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covermg all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
“on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Slate
of New Hampshire by ‘the N.H. Department of Insurance; and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of Neiv Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in'block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insuranice for all instrance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish 10 the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s} of insurence required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurence policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
" renewals thereof shall be attached and are :ncorpora{ed herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contraclor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements 5f N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Compensation™), :
15.2 To the extent the Cantractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require eny subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers” Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall -not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for'any other claim or benefit for
* Contractor, of any subcontractor or employee of Conlractor,
which might arise under.applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws ~in  connection with' the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party herelo to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States -
Post Office addressed to the parties at thé addresses given in

" blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived

‘or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the

pames hereto and only afler approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governer and.Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless'no such approval is required -
under the circumstances pursuant 1o State taw, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement ‘shall

-be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and -
inures to the benefitof the parties and their respectivé successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the pariies to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in Favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of ‘this Agreement shall be.brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTINGC TERMS. I[n the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (a5 modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benelfit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the

“interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
. Agreement. -

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. ’

23, SEVERABILITY. Intheevenl any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. .

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the sub_gecl matter
hereof.
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Exhibit A

+

_Special Provisions
Additipnal Exhibits D-G
Federal Cerhf cation 2 CFR 200 415
.
Requlred cemﬁcatmns include: (a) To assure that expendttures are proper and in accordance 'with the -
terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project budgets, the annual and final fiscal -
reports or vouchers requesting payment under the agreements must include a certification, signed by an
official who is authonzed to legally bmd the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signmg this repon, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true, complete,

and accurate,-and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes-and objectives

set forth if the terms and conditions of the Federal award, 1 am aware that any false, fictitious, or
fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or
administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section
. 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729—3?30 and 3801-3812).

Contractor Initials & #Z
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Exhibit B
Scope of Services .

"Friends Forever, Inc. (“FFI™) is a New Hampshiré non-profit organization located in Durham, New
Hampshire that offers teen leadership programming integrating the values of Resilience, Empathy, °

" Communication, and Impact across subject areas including Social Studies/Empathetic Debate,
Writing/Art, Communication/Leadership, and Adventure Education. Under this Agreement, FFi shall

‘offer its leaming recover program to New Hampshire high school students, with specific targeting to at

risk students. .

¥

In FY 23, FFI shall provide two {2) student cohorts up fo 10 studerits each from across the state. InFY 24
and FY 25, FF shall provide 14 (fourteen) student cohdrts up to 10 students each from across the state.
Each student shall receive eight (8) full days on-campus for full day and evening instruction and .
residential learning. In preparation of the eight full days on-campus, FFI shall provide 2 one-hour Zoom
" sessions to help engage and prepare each student. On-campus schedules shall be prepared as a result of
the Zoom sessions. ’ .. )

The eight day on-campus instructional and residential session shall include all meals, accommodations,
supplies, t-shists (uniforms), transportation, and instructional materials. At the minimum, FFl shall = -
provide in human skill/empathetic based leadership training, 150 hours of combined online and in-person
instructional time, allowing student to eam up to 2.5 credits per student; resulting in'up to 400 academic
credits being distributed if students demonstrate competencies. Lastly, students who successfully
complete the program shiall be considered alumni of FFI and FF1 must provide future opportunities to
alumni both locally and globally. '

Tentative Cohort Schedule

- Date Started Number of St;]dentﬁ '
4120123 Upto 10 )
/23 ‘ Upto 10
811123 Upto 20 . ]
C 111723 - Upto20 ,
121023 i Upto 20 "
211124 Up to 20
4114 - Up to 20
' 6/1724 . Up 1o 20
" 84 Sl Uptoao

Contract between Friends Forever Intemational end the New Hampshire Department of Education
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Exhibit C
Me!hod of Payment

FF { shall invoice NHED $2,200 per parhc:patmg student forFY 23 services and $2,500 per pamctpalmg
. student for FY 24 and FY 25. NHED shalt not be invoiced for students cancellmg more than 60 days
before the program startdate. FF1 shall bill at 50% of the per-stiudent amount for students that cancel-
between 46-60 days of the program start. FFI shall bill at 100% of the per-student amount for students
that cancel within 45 days of the program start date. If a student cancels-and is-replaced with an alternate
student, NHED shall only be billed for the partici patmg student. . =,

Limitation on Price: Upon mutual agreement between the Department of Educatton and the contractor,
line items in this budget may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the total budget ‘exceed the
price limitation of $394,000, FF1 will monitor program pamc:patlon and reject participation that would
exceed $394,000. ) .- R

Funding Sourr.e. Funds to support this request are avallable in FY23 in the account titled ESSERIIl - |
ARP Act 2021 and are anticipated to be available in FY24 and FY25 in ESSER IIl- ARP Act 202{; upon
the availability and continued-appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the authority to:
adjust encumbrances between Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further Governor approval,
if needed and justified.

h . T ™5 | YR “FV3S Total
06-56-562010-24370000-102-500731 $44,000 $300,000 $£50,000 $394,00Q
Contract for Program _Services . . '

Method of Payment: FF1 shall invoice NHED monthly with a payment term ofnet 30 days. Payments
. are subject to fund availability. Invoices and reports shali be-submitted to: .

Jessica Lescarbeau, Administrator IV
-NH Department of Education
Jessica.L.Lescarbeau@doe.nh.gov

+

Contragt between Friends Fon:vcr (nternational end the New Hampshire Depnnmem of Education
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EXHIBITD
Contractor Obligations

Contracls in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold {currently set at $250,000) must address
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the confractors violate or breoch
conirac! lerms, and provide for _such sanctions and penalties as appropticte, Reference:

2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix I. required contract clauses.

. The contractor acknowledges that 31 US.C. Chap, 38 [Administrative Remedies for Fc[.se Claims
and Statements) applies to the contractor's aclions pertaining te this contract.

The Conilractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each stalement of its
cerdification and disclosure, it any. in.addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the
"+ provisions of 31 US.C."§ 3801 el seq., apply 1o this cerfification and disclosure, if any,
Breach .
A breach of the contract clayses above mcy be grounds for termination of the confrcct ond for
debarment as a contractor and subcontractor us provided in 29 C.F.R.§ 5.12.
Fraud and False Siolements :
The Conlraclor understands that, i the project which is the sub]eci of ihis Conlracl is financed in
whole or-in part by federal funds, that if the undersigned. the company that the Contractor
reprasents, or any employee or. agenl thereof, knowingly makes any false statement,
representation, report or claim as fo the character, quality, quantity, or cost of materidl used or o
be used, or quantity or quality work performed or {o be performed, or makes any false stalement
- or representation of @ moledal foct in any statement, certificate, or report, the Coniractor and
- any company that the Conlractor represents may be subjeci to prosecution under the provision
of 18 USC §1001-and §1020. )
‘Env[ronmen!al Prolectlon
[This clause is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to federal-aid confracls
. only.)
The Conlractar Is required to comply with all gppficable slandards, orders or requirements lssued
under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act {42 U5.C. 1857 (h). Section 508 of the Clean Waler Acl (33
U.5.C. 1348}, Executive QOrder 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA} regulations (40
CFR Part 15} which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federai contracts, grants or loans of
facilities included on the EPA List of Viotating Facilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA
and to ihe u.s. EPA’Assisiont Administrator for Enforcement.
Procurement of Recovered Muierlois
- Inaccordance with Sectlion 4002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act {421).5.C. § 6962), State agencies
and agencles of o political subdivision of a state that are using approprialed Federal funds for
procurement must procure items designaled in guidelines of the Environmental Prolection
Agency [EPA) al 40 CFR 247 thal contain the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicable,.consistent with maintaining a satisiactory level of competition, where the purchase
price of ihe item exceeds $10.000 or the value of the quanlity acquired in the preceding liscal
year exceeded $10,000: musl procure solid waste management services in @ manner that
maximizes energy and resource recovery: and must have established an offirmative procurement
_program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines,

Revised 62521
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Exhibit E
. Federal Debarment and Suspension
a. By sugnc!ure cn this Controct, 1he Contractor certifies its compliance, and the comphcnce
of its Sub-Contractors, present or fulure, by staling that any person associated therewith in
the copacity of owner, pariner, director, officer, principal investor, project director,
manager, oudnfor or any posmon of authority mvolwng federal tunds;

1. Is rio! currenﬂy under suspension, debarment, voluniory exclusion, or delermingtion of
ineligibility by any Federal Agency:

2. Doesnol have a proposed debcrrﬁenl pending;

3. Hcs not been suspended, debarred. voluntarily excluded or derermmed sne!:glb[e by -
any Federal Agencywithin ihe past three (3} years; and

ks

4. Has not been indicted, convicied, or had a civil judgment rendered against the firm
by a court of competent gunsduchon inany moﬂer involving fraud or.officicl misconduct
* within the past Ihree (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Conlractor is unable ta certify fo the s1ctemen1 in Sechon :
a.1. above, thé Contractor or ifs Sub-Contractor shall be declared ingligible 1o enter into
Conlract or participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Conlractor is unable lo certify to any of the statements as .
. listed in Sections 0.2., 0.3., or a.4., above, the Contractor or ifs Sub- Contractor shall submit
a writlen explanation 1o the DOE. The certification of explangtion shall be considered in
conneclion with the DOE's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d The Contrccior shall provide :mmednole wiilten notice to the DOE I, at any time,
the Confractor or its Sub<Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension
certification has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Ravised 62521
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Exhibil F

AnH-lobbying

The Contracler agrees to comply wilh 1hé provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121,
Governmenl wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.5.C. 1352, and further
agrees lo have the Conlractor’s represemchve execule the following Certification:

The Contrcctor cemﬂes, by signing and submlftlng this conircci to the best of his/her knowledge
and belief, that:

a. No federal cppropncted funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersighéd, to apy. person for influencing or aftempling to influence any officer or
employee of any Slale or Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in conneclion with the awdrding
of any Federal contract, the making of any TFederal grant, the making of any federol loan,
the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the extension, conltinuation, renewal
amendment, or modmcahon of any Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperafive
agreement. -

b. I any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
Federal Agency, o Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 1his Federal contract, grant, [oan,
or cooperalive cgreemeni ihe undérsigned shall complete and submit the "Dusclosure of
Lobbying Activilies" form-in accordance withits instructions

https://www.gsa.gov/forms-library/disclosure-lobbying-activities

-¢. Tnis cerfification is a matericlrepresentation of fact uponwhichreliance was placed when
jhis transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certificotion is a prerequisile
for making and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S.
Code. Any person who foils 1o file the required certification shall be subject to a civil
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contraclor also agrees, by signing this cantract that it shall require that the language
of this cerfification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Contractor(s) and lower-tier
Sub-Coniractors which exceed $100,000 and that alf such Sub-Conlractors and lower-tier
sub-Contractors shali certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The DOE shall keep the firm's certification on file os part of its ofiginal contract, The
Controctor shallkeep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-
Conlractors.on file. Certification shall be retained for three {3) years tollowing compietion
and acceptance of any given project.

Y

Revised 625-21 .
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Exhiblt G

Righisto !nvenilom Made Under a Confract, Copy Rights and Confidentiality
Rights !o Inventlons Made Under a Contract or Agreemenf
Contracts or agreemenits for the performance of experimental, developmenicl or research work
shall provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulling invention
in accordance with 37 CFR part 401, "Rights to Inventions made by Nonprofit Organizations and A
$mall Buiiness Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts -ond Cooperative Agreements,” and
anyimplemenling reguiohons issued by the DOE. '

Any discavery or invention that arises during the course of the: conirccf shali be reported to the'
DOE, The Contfractor i required to disclose inventions promptly to'the contrcchng officer [within 2
months) aftér the inventor discloses it in wiiting to conlroctor personnel responsible for patent
‘motiers, The awarding dgency shall determing how righls in the invention/discovery shclt be
allocated consistent with "Government Patent Policy” and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

-Conlfidentiality . .
All'Written and- oral information and materials disclosed or provided by the DOE under this
agreement constilutes Confidential Information, regardiess of whether such information was
provided before or ol’?er the dote on this agreement or. how it was provided.

The Coniractor and represenfctwes thereol, ackrnowledge that by making use of, ‘ocqufring of
adding fo information obou! matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidentiol
to the DOE and its partners, must remain the exclusive property of the DOE.

Confidential information means ali data and information related to the business and operction of
fhe DOE, including but not limited to all school and sludent data contained in NH Tille XV,
Education. Chapters 186-200. '

Confidential information includes but is not imited 1o, student and school distict data, revenue
and cost information, the source code for computer software and hardware products owned in
port or in whole by the DOE, financial infermation, partner information{i ncluding the identity of.
DOE partners), Contracter and supplier information, fincluding the identity of DOE Contractars
and suppliers), and any information that has been marked "confidential” or “proprieiary”, or with
the ike designafion. During the term of this conlract the Contractor ogrees to abide by such rules
as may be adopled from time 1o time by the DOE to maintain the security of all confidential
information. The Contractor futther agrees that it will always regard and preserve as confidential
information/dala received during the performance of this contract. The Contractor will not use.

. copy. make notes, or use excerpts of any confidential informalion. nor will it give, disclose, provide
access to, or otherwise make available ony confidential information to any person not employed .
or contracted by the DOE or subconfrocled with the Contractor.

Qwnership of Inteliectual Property -

The DOE shall retain ownership of all source ddta and other intellectual properly of the DOE
provided fo the Contractor in order to complete the services of this agreement. As welt the DOE
will retain copyright ownership for any and all materials, palents and intéllectual property
produced, including. but nol limiled to, brochures, resource directeries, protocols, guidelines,
poslers, of reports. The Contracior shall not reproduce any materials for purposes other than use
for the terms under the contract without prior written approval from the DOE.

Revited¢-25-21
- Coniractor meg..._
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State of New Hampshire oo
Department of State .

CERTIFICATE

-

" 1, David M. Scintan, Secretary-of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FRIENDS FOREVER. INC. is

3 New Hampéhire “Nonprofit Corporaﬁon registered to unsact business in New Harmpshire on Novamber 27, 1995.1 futher
ce}tify that n_!f fees ond documents tequired by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as
this office is concemed. ) . - S

- B B

Business ID: 2397175
Centificate Number: 0006108978

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,
1 hereto set imy hand.end canse io be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

* this Tih day of February A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan
! Secretary of State

-



[

F F I E}Jﬂzﬂ A 03821
it »1.603.357.530)

To: NH Department of Education

I, Robert Raiche, Jr., hereby certify that { em a duly appointed representative of

- _Friends Forever, ing, I hereby 1ccrtify that Stephen Martineay, CEQ is duly authorized to

execute contracts on behall of Eriends Forever, Iac, and may bind the organization thereby.

I hereby certify that said authority has not been amended or repealed and remains in full
force and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days. | further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy
the position(s) indicated and thal they have full authority to bind the corporaticn. To the extent
that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts

with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Robert Raiche, Jr.
Board Treasurer

Dated: February 27th, 2023 Altest: wm Mﬁ‘u ’lﬂ '



ACORD»
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

_CHAUGHTON
DATE [I04LDOTTYT)
21712023

FRIEFOR-01 _

BELOW,

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED ‘BY THE POLICIES
THIS CERYIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES- NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S).AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ARD THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

r

IMPORTANT;

it tho certificats holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy({les) must heve ADDITIONAL JNSURED provhlonl or be endnrlod
If SUBROGATION. 1S WANED suliject to the terms.and conditions of the policy, cerla!n pollctes may require sn endorsement. A statement on

ch endersemont(s).

this cerfificate does notconfer rights to the cartficate holder in lieu of su

EX

| enooucen . MT Cathy Haughton. .
B et ~ B e {2 4oy (603) 9344663 _
Rochestor, NH 03867 . - 5380 ¢ chaughton@bemiorins.com . L.
’ . , NSURERSS) AFFORDONG COVERAGE NAC #
Hsurer A Philadelphia Insurancs Company - .
WIS , msma Easlemn Altlunce Insurance Group "~ * ' . .
gﬁen;s Fow::r lné. * - msmc
na klorgan Yoy | sesunene
Durham, NHIOSSH- . SRR E
.- MEURER F ’ s
COVERAGES . " _CERTIFICATE NUMBER: . . REVISION NUMBER: :

THIS iS5 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOYE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD .
" INDICATED, MNOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED 8Y THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
CLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN RECUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

5 ree oFpesmance____ [RES1%D COADONT | ARDGHTY i toars ;

A | X [ commeren cexeraL Lan Y EACH . 1,000,000
] csacwoe [ X]occm 47022 | giozs | ANGEIOSENIED o | 100,000
— ' [ 1iz0 0 ey com e[ 8 5,050

] P 7,696,000
GEML GATE L MT | GEMERAL AGGREGATE I 2,000,000
”ﬁ - PROOUCTS - COMPIOR AGG | 2,000,000
OTHER: . __ 1z ) C
A | aromoen £ ussaery ] | GRasED SHGELNT [ 1,000,000
| | mirauro . . ] 41712022 | 411772023 | sovay pmy (Porpersony | B
|| A&y ATTos | ) - ¥ QLLIRY (P accioent)] & ;
| X | M55, oy TS : ME 5
1 . - P 3
ATX|uemsuame | X | occum , EACH OCCURRENCE £ 1,000,000
" | excessuss v | W1TI2022 | ANTI2023 [ penmnate ' 1,000,000

- cen]lem's 10,000 . s

B |WORXERS COMPENSA X | PER [

D B A ERST LLABIITY | S | 18 .
Mmmm%eonm @ NI 473072022 | dR0RO23 | ) corypcenent’  ls 600,000

Ot . EL IXSEASE - BA EMPLCVES § 500,000
ggéﬁmocmmmm— . £ DISEASE - POLICY LOAT 3 £00,000

DESCRPTION OF OPERATIORE 7 LOCATIONS IVEHICLES (ACORD 151, AXTUoN AWmana Schodusy, may ba ainched If more 303 b aguired}

_GERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELUATION
SHOULD ANY &F THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
TME EXPIRATION "DATE THEREOF, NOTICE Wil BE CELIVERED NN
NH Dept of Education ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS, £
25 Hall 5t .
Concord, NH 03301 -
AUTHORIED REPRESENTATIVE .
; 1. > N _
AGORD 26 (201603} © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Al rights resarved,

The ACORD riame and logo sre registered marks of ACORD

*
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